Agenda
For enquiries on this agenda, please
contact:
Martin Newton 020 8547 6086
martin.newton@kingston.gov.uk
This agenda is available on:
www.kingston.gov.uk
Published on 1 April 2021

Licensing Sub-Committee
Date:

Tuesday 13 April 2021

Time:

9:45 am

Place:
An online meeting that can be viewed at
https://kingston.public-i.tv/core/portal/webcast_interactive/505284
Members
The Sub Committee will consist of three of the following Members; Councillors: Stephanie Archer, Lorraine Dunstone, Simon Edwards, Ed Fram, Hilary
Gander, Dennis Goodship, Lesley Heap, Ian George, Katrina Lidbetter, Dave Ryder-Mills,
Malcolm Self, John Sweeney, Margaret Thompson, Jon Tolley and Olly Wehring.

Everyone is welcome to attend the meeting
This agenda is available to view on: www.kingston.gov.uk
You can also access this agenda through the Modern.gov app or by scanning the QR code
with your smartphone.

Agenda
Changes to the Application
The applicants are advised of issues raised in representations from residents and the
Responsible Authorities - Police, Fire Service, Environmental Health, Noise and Health
and Safety. In discussions with the various parties on these the applicant may agree to
accept conditions and/or propose changes to the original application.
The law allows discussions to continue up to the time of the Licensing Sub-committee
hearing, often in good time before the hearing. As a result of these discussions, changes
to the original application may have been made and representations may have been
withdrawn. It will not always be possible to include these emendations in the agenda. The
hearing regulations require that should any party to the hearing wish to rely upon any
additional evidence, this should be served upon the Licensing Authority five days before
this hearing.
At the start of the hearing the Licensing Officer will explain any changes that the applicant
has made, conditions agreed with Responsible Authorities, and whether any additional
evidence has been served on the Licensing Authority.
Recording of the meeting
This meeting will be live streamed and the recording will be available on the web site
(www.kingston.gov.uk) with the agenda and minutes.

1.

Appointment of Chair

2.

Declarations of Interest

Minutes
3.
To confirm that the minutes of the meeting held on 18 January 2021 are a correct record.
4.

Pryzm - 154-166 Clarence Street, Kingston, KT1 1QP

Appendix A

5.

Best Kebab & Pizza - 29 Cambridge Road, Kingston, KT1 3NQ

Appendix B

6.

Urgent Items Authorised by the Chair

Exclusion of the Press and Public
7.
The following matters may be considered in private if the Committee agrees that, under
Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public are excluded from the
meeting on the grounds that it is likely that exempt information, as defined in paragraph 1
of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act, would be disclosed. This paragraph covers
information relating to any individual.

Procedure at Licensing Sub Committees
Hearing Procedure
40.

The Committee Members will be assisted, where necessary, by
(1)
(2)

Legal Advisor
Committee Secretary

41.

The two officers are there to give advice and procedural guidance to the Committee
and do not participate in the hearing or deliberations other than to clarify legal or
procedural matters. They are the only officers who retire with the Committee.

42.

A hearing shall take the form of a discussion led by the Committee who will expect
to hear from people in the following order:
1.
2.
3.
4.

The case-licensing officer will outline the circumstances of the application,
what representations have been made, and the outcome of any discussion.
The Applicants.
Responsible Authorities that are making representations.
Other persons who are making relevant representations. If there are a large
number of persons where appropriate they may be invited to select a
spokesperson to act on their behalf.

43.

Where notice has been given to a party seeking clarification of an issue, further
information supporting this application, representation, or notice may be given at the
hearing.

44.

In normal circumstances, the Chair will allow those that have submitted written
representations to have up to five minutes for each party to make his/her
submission but, in certain circumstances (e.g. where the issues are more complex
or detailed, with considerable number of objections or points), the Chair will allow
greater time for a person who is addressing the Committee on his/her
representation. The applicant will be allowed five minutes multiplied by the total
number of persons addressing the Committee or their representatives e.g. where
there are four such persons, the applicant will be allowed at least 4 x 5 minutes,
namely 20 minutes to address the Committee.

45.

During the hearing, members of the Committee are permitted to ask questions of
any party or other person who appears.

46.

The Chair will only permit cross-examination by the parties in those instances
where it is considered necessary for the clarification of an issue or to elicit further
information or if considered appropriate in a case following a request from any
party.

47.

At the end of the hearing each party will sum up their representation with the
applicant speaking last.

Failure to Attend
48.

If a party has informed the Council that they do not intend to attend or be
represented at the hearing, the hearing can proceed in their absence. If a party

who has not so indicated fails to attend or be represented at a hearing the
Committee may:



Adjourn the hearing to specified date, where it considers this to be necessary in
the public interest; or
Hear the case in the party’s absence.

49.

Where an adjournment is made, the Council must notify the parties of the date, time
and place to which the hearing has been adjourned.

50.

Where a hearing takes place in the absence of the party, the Committee must
consider at the hearing the application, representations or notice made by that
party.

Making the Decision
51.

After having heard the representations and prior to retiring to make its decision, the
Committee may, if it wishes, seek the guidance of the case-licensing officer
regarding possible suitable conditions in respect of any particular application.

52.

The Committee must disregard any information given or evidence produced by a
party or witness which is not relevant to: the application; representations or notice;
or the promotion of the licensing objectives.

53.

The Committee has a duty to conduct its business impartially, not to predetermine
the issue and not to discuss matters with press or residents. In making its decision
the Committee must give reasons to support the decision. It must state, in respect
of premises licenses, why refusal or attachment of conditions is appropriate in order
to promote a particular licensing objective, and, in respect of all other applications,
the reasons why applications are refused or revoked.

Notification of the Decision
54.

The decision and reasons for the decision will be recorded in the minutes of the
meeting. These will be circulated and made available on the website. Generally
applicants will be sent a decision letter within five working days of the day of the
meeting, outlining the decision and any conditions that are attached to the
application. In addition, a letter will be sent to all those who made relevant written
representations in connection with the application.

55.

This will confirm the decision made; any conditions attached to an approval or the
reasons for refusal. Details of the respective appeal rights will also be sent with this
decision notice. In certain cases (e.g. temporary event notices and reviews of the
premises licence including emergency steps review and any appeal of such a
review), the Committee will give the decision orally on the day and the decision
notice will be sent in writing as soon as possible thereafter.

56.

The Committee must give its decision in accordance with the regulations.

Right to Appeal
57.

Applicants and the other parties to the hearing have specified appeal rights. The
appeal must be made to the Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of the date of receipt

of notification of the decision by a party. Details of how to appeal and the grounds
on which an appeal may be made will be sent out with the notification letter.
Background papers – held by Gary Marson – Democratic Services – 020 8547 5021, email gary.marson@kingston.gov.uk
These documents can also be found on www.kingston.gov.uk
i.

Statement of Licensing Policy – 31 January 2019

ii.

Licensing Hearing procedures – 23 May 2018

A1

Appendix A

Licensing Sub Committee
13 APRIL 2021
PRYZM, 154-166 CLARENCE STREET, KINGSTON UPON THAMES, KT1 1QP
Application for a New Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003
Report by the Licensing and Environmental Compliance Team Leader

PURPOSE
To determine the application, by Public Hearing, following receipt by the Licensing
Authority of relevant representations.

This sub-committee hearing is to consider the application, having regard to the
representation and relevant guidance, with the following options being available:

DECISION TO BE MADE:
1) Grant the application as it currently stands.
2) Grant the application subject to such conditions as the authority considers
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.
3) Exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which the
application relates.
4) Reject the application.

INTRODUCTION
1.

This application relating to Pryzm, 154-166 Clarence Street, Kingston upon Thames,
KT1 1QP was made on 18 February 2021 by Thomas & Thomas Partners Solicitors
on behalf of The Bank of New York Mellon (International) Limited.

2.

The application seeks a new premises licence to permit the sale by retail of alcohol
(for consumption on and off the premises), regulated entertainment consisting of films,
boxing/wrestling, dance, live and recorded music between the hours of 10:00 and
03:00 the following morning, every day of the week. The provision of late night
refreshment (hot food & beverages) is also being sought from 23:00 hours to 03:00
hours the following morning.

A2
In addition, the applicant is seeking non-standard timings for all licensable activities
from the end of specified opening hours on New Year’s Eve until the start of opening
on the following day.
There is also an additional hour to be added to the times all licensable activities are
authorised on the day British summertime commences.
The application is identical to the current premises licence held by CC Stim UK Tradeco
1 Ltd. It is what is referred to as a shadow licence application. Shadow licences are
in the main applied for by the landlord of a licensed premises which is operated by a
tenant and the licence is held in the name of the tenant (as is the case with Pryzm). In
these circumstances, there are several ways in which the tenant’s actions could have
a negative impact on the licence: they might become insolvent or bankrupt and the
licence will lapse. By applying for a licence, the landlord is protecting this asset against
the risk posed by potentially insolvent or irresponsible tenants. Although landlords can
use provisions in the lease, these will rarely have a bearing on the licensing process.
Such provisions may provide a landlord with a right of action against a tenant, but they
cannot prevent a licence from lapsing. A shadow licence solves this problem for the
landlord.
Relevant pages of the application form are attached at Annex 1.
3.

The proposed hours of operation are laid out in Annex 2.

CONSULTATION
4.

I confirm that the applicant has advertised the application by way of public notice
displayed at the premises, and in a local newspaper. The application has also been
made available on the Council’s website.

5.

I confirm that all Responsible Authorities received a copy of the application. No
representations were received from any of the Responsible Authorities.

6.

In accordance with the Council’s Licensing Policy, 1608 residents were consulted in
writing and informed that an application had been received. Seven valid
representations were received from Other Persons. One of the representations was
in support of the application. Out of the six representations against, three were made
by one individual in three separate capacities. The representations make reference
to matters that relate to each of the licensing objectives, with a greater emphasis on
the crime & disorder, and prevention of public nuisance licensing objectives. Copies
of the representations are attached at Annex 4.

LOCATION
7.

A map showing the approximate location of the premises is attached as Annex 5,
with photographs attached as Annex 6.

LICENSING OBJECTIVES
8.

In considering this report the Sub-Committee is required to take into account the
Secretary of State’s Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003,
our Licensing Policy and Special Policy on Cumulative Impact (relevant paragraphs
are produced at Annex 7 & Annex 8) and the licensing objectives of:

A3





The prevention of crime and disorder
Public safety
The prevention of public nuisance
The protection of children from harm

CUMULATIVE IMPACT POLICY
9.

Applicants should be aware that the adoption of a Cumulative Impact Policy creates
a policy where the presumption is to refuse an application for new premises licences
or club premises certificates (for premises within the defined cumulative impact area).
The policy will be strictly applied and it will only be overridden in the most exceptional
circumstances, and in particular where approval would not materially lead to an
increase in number and/or size of operating premises or later operating premises in
the Cumulative Impact Area. The same presumption applies to applications made by
existing licensed premises wishing to make changes to their licence that may add to
existing cumulative impact.

10.

The Special Policy relates to all applications for new licences or variations that
increase hours or capacity or add licensable activities, except proposals which do not
involve the sale of alcohol or the sale of alcohol beyond 23:00pm or for proposals for
regulated entertainment not extending beyond 23:00pm.

DETERMINATION
11.

In making their decision in respect of the application, the Sub-Committee must have
regard to Statutory Guidance and the Councils’ own Statement of Licensing Policy
as well as to the representations made and the evidence heard. However, the SubCommittee must disregard any representations that do not relate to the promotion of
the licensing objectives.

12.

The licensing sub-committee is asked to determine the application, having regard to
the representations received and any evidence heard at the hearing, in accordance
with the following options:


Grant the application as requested.



Grant the application subject to such conditions as the authority considers
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.



Exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which the
application relates.



Reject the application.

CONDITIONS
13.

Mandatory Conditions. If granted, the licence would be subject to the mandatory
conditions laid down in the licensing Act 2003 (this information will be available to the
Sub-Committee meeting).

14.

Conditions arising from applicants Operating Schedule. In applying for a licence,
the applicant is required to complete an operating schedule. This describes the steps
the applicant proposes to take in order to promote the licensing objectives if the
application is granted. These steps which are appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives will become conditions if the application is granted and are shown
in Annex 3. However, the Sub-Committee must, having regard to the representations

A4
made, modify these conditions, if it considers that such a step is appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives.
CONTENT OF ANNEXES TO THIS REPORT
Annex 1
Annex 2
Annex 3
Annex 4
Annex 5
Annex 6
Annex 7
Annex 8

Application Form
Proposed hours of operation
Conditions arising from applicants Operating Schedule
Representations from Other Persons
Location Plan
Photographs of Location
Excerpts from Secretary of State’s Guidance and Kingston’s Statement of
Licensing Policy
Special Policy on Cumulative Impact

BACKGROUND papers are held by Mandy Cooper, Environmental Protection Officer –
020 8547 5080, licensing@kingston.gov.uk

A5

ANNEX 1

A6

A7

A8

A9

A10

A11

A12

A13

A14

A15

A16

A17

A18

A19

A20

A21

A22

A23

A24

A25

A26

A27

A28

A29

A30

A31

A32

A33

A34

A35

A36

ANNEX 2
Proposed hours of operation
PRYZM, 154-166 CLARENCE STREET, KINGSTON UPON THAMES, KT1 1QP
Proposed licence
Day
Sale of Alcohol
Regulated
Late Night
Opening Hours
On & Off
Entertainment
Refreshment
premises
(films, boxing,
indoors only
wrestling, dance,
live & recorded
music) indoors only
Monday
10.00-03.00
10.00-03.00
23:00-03:00
10.00-03.30
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday

10.00-03.00

10.00-03.00

23:00-03:00

10.00-03.30

10.00-03.00

10.00-03.00

23:00-03:00

10.00-03.30

10.00-03.00

10.00-03.00

23:00-03:00

10.00-03.30

10.00-03.00

10.00-03.00

23:00-03:00

10.00-03.30

10.00-03.00

10.00-03.00

23:00-03:00

10.00-03.30

10.00-03.00

10.00-03.00

23:00-03:00

10.00-03.30

Non-standard timings for licensable activities:
From the end of specified hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of opening on the following
day.
An additional hour to be added to all licensable activities on the day British summertime
commences.

A37

ANNEX 3
Conditions arising from applicants Operating Schedule
The prevention of crime & disorder
Drugs and weapons
1. A drugs safe and log system will be in use at the premises to account for the seizure or
drugs from customers. The premises management will liaise with police for regular collection
of seized drugs.
Closed Circuit Television System (CCTV)
2. Digital CCTV shall be installed, to include colour pictures of the pay desk, and maintained
to the satisfaction of the Police and Licensing Authority. Recordings from the installed CCTV
must cover the club entrance / exit doors, external approaches, main bars and main toilet
entrances and smoking areas to be kept for 30 days and shall be immediately available for
inspection and viewing by authorised Council Officers and / or the Police.
3. In the event of the venue requiring more than six door staff (i.e. holding more than 450
customers), a suitably trained staff member from the venue must monitor the CCTV screens
for drunken persons or persons committing criminal behaviour. The staff member must
communicate by electronic means with security staff who will be in a position to deal with
the behaviour in a proper manner.
4. At the request of the Police and / or Licensing Officers, CCTV recordings in a playable
format must be provided within 24 hours of the request.
5. Ensure that the CCTV system is operating 24 hours, every day.
6. A TV monitor must be clearly viewable by customers upon entering the venue showing
real time footage so that they are made aware that they have been captured on CCTV as
they enter the premises.
7. Signage shall be put up in the premises and be clearly visible to all customers, stating
that CCTV recording is in operation and signage must, at a minimum, be put up at all entry
and exit points.
8. With respect to the self-contained, designated VIP areas within the premises, a clear view
through the windows will be maintained and there will be CCTV coverage of each pod within
this area. Security staff will supervise their use, with management being able to access them
at all times.
Incident recording
9. An incident / refusals book will be maintained and used at the premises. Upon request, it
will be readily available for inspection by the police or local authority officer.
Door supervision/security personnel
10. Security personnel, registered with the Security Industry Authority (SIA) and employed
at the premises must enter their full name, valid phone contact details, SIA Badge Number,
employing company, along with the time that they are working in a register upon
commencement of their work at the premises. The Designated Premises Supervisor /
manager at the time will be responsible for ensuring this is done and for confirming the
security staff details and permission to work.
11. Sufficient SIA registered door supervisors must be employed by the management to deal
with all potential reasonable expectations of trouble within the premises, or caused by the

A38
premises’ clientele within the near vicinity. The venue Door Staff contingent should include
female door staff at a ratio of no less than 10%.
12. The ratio of door supervisors to patrons shall be no less than 1:100, with a minimum of
4.
13. Door supervisors are to use walkie-talkie or other forms of electronic communication
devices to communicate with each other including the use of ear-pieces to ensure
communications can be properly heard and understood at all times the premises are open
to the public.
Private hire and mixed age events
14. The Designated Premises Supervisor must provide the contact name and details
(including telephone number and address) or the organiser of any private hire at the
premises at least 14 days before the event. Following checks the police may, if they have
good reason, veto the holding of the private event in the interests of preventing crime and
disorder at the premises, and the premises must comply with such a veto.
15. Police are to be informed 7 working days prior to any event where children’s disco of
mixed ages is to be held.
Excluded persons
16. The Designated Premises Supervisor is to take all reasonable steps to make security
and other staff members aware of the identities of excluded persons.
17. A record of all excluded persons is to be kept on the premises at all times, and is to be
made immediately available to police officers and / or local authority officers on request.
Plastic drinking vessels
18. Only plastic bottles and containers are permitted to be used for the sale or supply of
drinks (except for wine and champagne bottles and glasses in the VIP area) after midnight.
Admission/searching/ID scan
19. The Search Policy attached to this Licence (Appendix 1) will be adopted by the Premises
Licence Holder for all persons coming into the venue. The only exception being persons
who are unable to go through the metal detection arch or to be searched using the metal
detection wand as a result of a medical condition, provided evidence is provided by such a
person of their condition to the reasonable satisfaction of the management of the premises.
20. (a) All customers attending the venue must produce identification which must be
scanned into one of no less than 3 ID scanning / recognition machines that shall be operating
whilst the venue is open to the public. If a person does not provide identification then they
will not be granted admission to the premises. Acceptable identification for the purpose of
this condition is that issued by a government agency bearing the holders photograph, name
and date of birth or identification bearing the UK PASS hologram.
(b) All ID scanning / recognition machines will be tested by 18:00 hours on every day that
the premises is open. In the event that any of the machines fails to work, this will be reported
to the suppliers support team, the Metropolitan Police Service and the Royal Borough of
Kingston Licensing department by 18:30 hours. Until such time as that machine is fully
operational, customers will have their identification checked by the remaining machine(s) in
accordance with the requirements of condition 40(a).
(c) In the event that all of the available ID scanning / recognition machines are not working,
all customers entering the venue will have their identification photographed or filmed before
they are allowed admission. A copy of the photograph or moving image recording will be

A39
retained by the premises for 28 days. Acceptable identification for the purpose of this
condition is that issued by a government agency bearing the holders photograph, name and
date of birth or identification bearing the UK PASS hologram. Records of all machine failures
will be recorded in the Incident Log. This condition will not apply to any person who is
attending a live music event at the premises, who is admitted to the premises before 22:30
hours, where the Metropolitan Police have agreed in writing that the requirement of this
condition relating to such live music event can be waived, nor to any person who is attending
a private pre-booked function where such person is on a guest list, provided that any person
attending a private pre-booked function does so in a room which is set aside for such
function. In the event that such a person is allowed admission (other than visiting the toilet)
to any part of the premises which is not reserved for a private pre-booked function then such
person will have to produce identification which is then scanned into an ID scanning /
recognition machine, and if such person does not provide identification then they will not be
granted admission to the remainder of the premises.
Queue management and dispersal
21. The Premises Licence Holder will ensure that a body worn camera is worn by door
supervisors in each of the rooms, other than in the event that door supervisors need to
attend to an incident or to otherwise leave a room to undertake a duty to promote the
licensing objectives.
22. For the period of 30 minutes after the premises ceases to serve alcohol the licence
holder must be prepared to provide security personnel, in high visibility jackets, and two of
whom will wear body cameras, to assist Police to patrol Clarence Street between Cromwell
Road and Old London Road for the purposes of preventing disorder and crime.
23. The Dispersal Policy attached to this Licence will be observed by the Premises Licence
Holder. The Dispersal Policy will be reviewed periodically by the Premises Licence Holder
or at the insistence of the Royal Borough of Kingston’s Licensing department.
24. The Premises Licence Holder will provide street wardens to patrol the streets shown
hatched on the plan dated 24/08/2018 and attached to the Premises Licence, a circuit
around Clarence Street, Old London Road and Hardman Road from midnight to 04:00 on
any evening that the premises are open for the provision of licensable activities. This
condition will not apply when only persons attending a private pre-booked function at the
premises or where the number of customers who have been at the premises is less than
500.
Closed Circuit Television System (CCTV)
25. The CCTV monitors located in the back of house management areas will be monitored
at all times the premises are open for licensable activities, and until the last customer has
left the premises.
Public safety
Boxing and wrestling
1. In the event that a boxing, mixed-martial arts or wrestling event is held at the premises,
the Premises Licence Holder will undertake a risk assessment to ensure that any risks
associated with the licensing objectives is minimized, including the construction of the ring,
the layout and positioning of seating and the provision of trained first aid personnel.
First aid
2. When there are 500 customers in the premises, then at least one qualified first aider (e.g.,
St John's, Red Cross, similar awarding body or a higher level) must be employed on the
premises at all times the premises are open to the public. The first aider will be available, if

A40
required, in order to advise door staff on customers prior to entry to the club regarding signs
of drunkenness or drug abuse. The venue will provide first aid facilities commensurate with
the type of event and customers expected".
Conduct of premises
3. The external smoking balcony will be staffed at all times to ensure that overcrowding does
not occur.
4. All doors onto the external balcony and stairways A and B will be self-closing.
5. The total number of persons accommodated within the premises at any one time shall not
exceed 1800, excluding staff and door staff.
The prevention of public nuisance
Conduct of premises
1. All reasonable efforts are to be employed by the management and security personnel to
keep customers quiet and orderly prior to entry and upon leaving the premises.
2. The licence holder will promote the effective and quiet dispersal of patrons from the
premises by requesting them both verbally, including when necessary, public
announcement, and through visible signage displayed prominently at the exits, to leave and
disperse in an orderly and quiet manner. Door supervisors will pay particular attention to this
at the point of exit.
3. The premises shall prominently display signage informing customers:a) To leave quietly and respect neighbours
b) Stating that CCTV is in operation and police have instant access to the footage
c) The management reserve the right as a condition of entry to search customers prior to
entry, whilst in the club and upon leaving the club.
Dispersal
4. Barriers should be utilised outside the premises, in consultation with the police, to aid
patron dispersal.
Queueing
5. The queue is to be pro-actively monitored looking for potential problems and where
appropriate advising patrons on crime prevention.
Litter
6. The Premises Licence Holder will provide three litter bins, which will be placed on
Clarence Street prior to the premises opening for the provision of licensable activities, and
will be removed after the premises have closed.
Pubwatch and Community Forums
7. A dedicated contact telephone number for a member of management at the premises will
be provided by the Premises Licence Holder to residents who live on a street from which a
representation was received as part of the review hearing held on the 20th November 2012.
8. The Premises Licence Holder will, where requested by local residents, continue to hold
residents forum meetings, unless it is agreed with the Royal Borough of Kingston such
residents forums are no longer required Admission/re-admission.

11/03/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Pryzm - EH-LIC/043700

A41

ANNEX 4
RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Pryzm - EH-LIC/043700
1 message
10 March 2021 at 12:31
To: "licensing@kingston.gov.uk" <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Dear Sirs
I am fully supportive of the renewal of the premises licence for Pryzm.
I have lived in Kingston for the past 5 years and have on occasions returned home from work late
at night, passing Pryzm on my walk home. I have always found the place very well managed and
the security guards polite and respectful of their clients.
I am very happy that our young people (and old ones like me too for certain events) have a place
in Kingston to enjoy music and dancing. I like the fact that Kingston has a night life, provides jobs
and entertainment. I take great joy seeing the excited young people queuing up outside Pryzm, all
dressed up and looking forward to an enjoyable evening. And I definitely hope to see this again
after the lock down ends.
Thanks and regards

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0xgXIfkTUo0789M7SlNmf_TLRq56wxTbVf9VDWh0mcfz2s7/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&permthid=… 1/1

A42

11th March 2021

Your Ref: EH-LIC/043700
Mr David Kingstone
Regulatory Services
Kingston & Sutton Shared Environment Services
Guildhall 2
Kingston Upon Thames
KT11 1EU

Dear Mr Kingstone
Re: Licensing Act 2003 – Application For A New Premises Licence Pryzm, 154-166 Clarence
Street, Kingston Upon Thames KT1 1QP
We received notice of the above mentioned new licence application for Pryzm in Clarence
Street, Kingston Upon Thames. I wish to submit a representation against this application for
the following reasons:The Prevention of Public Nuisance/Crime and Disorder
Public Nuisance:


When Pryzm customers leave the venue in the early hours, there are many who
gather on Old London Road to collect their cars and, although this noise is amplified
at this time of night with slamming doors and starting engines, it is often
accompanied by loud music blaring from car stereos.



People often gather in noisy groups and linger along the street for long periods of
time. As they are often affected by drinking alcohol, there is always a lot of loud
shouting or screaming with no consideration for the large number of residents who
live and are disturbed by their behaviour. On a number of occasions, either my
husband, myself or other residents in the street have attempted to politely
encourage these groups to go home. However, this has almost always been met
with a torrent of verbal abuse, threats, or being laughed at and mocked.

A43

Page 2
11th March 2021
Mr David Kingstone


Bottles are smashed, uncollected bin-bags and other rubbish is strewn about the
street and often left in residents doorways. Quite a lot of the rubbish comes from
the food outlets adjacent to Pryzm that remain open to accommodate late night
customers.

Crime and Disorder:


We regularly get men and women using our doorway as a public toilet or perfect
place to vomit. Once I opened my front door to find a young woman squatting and
peeing behind the wall around the entrance to my home. Asking her to move away,
I received a flood of verbal abuse from her group of friends waiting for her in the car
parked right outside.



There are often fights or arguments breaking out in the street, some of which have
resulted in police cars tearing down the road with flashing lights.

We have attended a number of ‘residents’ meetings’ at Pryzm and raised our concerns with
their manager, security team, local council members and police representative. One of the
Pryzm managers, Stephen Currie, gave us his telephone number so we could contact him to
help disperse noisy groups and encourage them to go home. Other residents, as well as
myself, have had to call Stephen many times and, although he has always done his best to
support us, he was often too busy at the venue and unable to answer his phone.
You say in your recent letter, “The protection of local residents is given a central place in the
Licensing Act”. Is this really true? As a resident on Old London Road now for eight years, it
is very clear that the local residents are left without any protection at all from the nightly
consequences of Pryzm. Pryzm are asking for the ‘consumption of alcohol to be allowed
daily from 10pm until 3am, both in and out of the premises’. If Kingston Council continue to
consider this to be something of merit for the town, surely both Kingston Council and Pryzm
management should ensure local residents are given that ‘central place’ in the Licensing Act
as stated, and take necessary measures to protect the residents and their properties against
the nightly public disturbances, disruption and public nuisance that Pryzm brings. For
example, perhaps Old London Road should be closed on Pryzm event nights, to all but the
residents, to prevent Pryzm customers walking through or lingering in the street. This would
also stop Pryzm customers parking on the street that causes a lot of late night disturbance.
Perhaps more visible Pryzm security should be available and dispersed along the street and
around the venue to ensure customers go home and not hang about to cause public
nuisance.

A44

Page 3
11th March 2021
Mr David Kingstone

We are strongly against the Pryzm license application, but since this venue has been allowed
to continue as is for many years, we don’t hold out much hope of their license being turned
down. All we can hope for is the council’s realisation that Old London Road has hundreds of
residents living in the houses and flats along the street that include many families with
young children, as well as quite a large community of elderly people living in the Alms
houses. We have all enjoyed the luxury of undisturbed sleep and cleaner streets since
Pryzm has been closed during lockdown. It has allowed us to truly realise the impact that
Pryzm has on our lives, especially with regards to anxiety, sleep disturbance, pollution and
our standard of living.
Yours sincerely

18/03/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Licensing Application Pryzm EH-LIC/043700 Objection

A45

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Licensing Application Pryzm EH-LIC/043700 Objection
1 message
12 March 2021 at 16:37
To: RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>
Dear Mr Kingstone,
My name is

and I reside at

I object to the licensing Application for Pryzm to remain open to 3 am in the morning on a daily basis!
In my view this is totally unacceptable, my bedroom windows look down into Old London Road and I am tired of people who have
been drinking for hours in Pryzm shouting as they walk up the road and having a parties by their parked cars all hours of the night.
They then roar off in their cars with the music blasting out to the disturbance of everyone in the street!
We have had issues with Burger Plus in Old London Road which to some degree has been resolved by them now closing at 1 am
and I think 1 am should be the latest that Pryzm should be allowed to stay open to with the exception of Sunday which should be
12am.
Whilst I would prefer Pryzm to be closed on a permanent basis I regonise that young people do have to have somewhere to go to
enjoy themselves but it should not at the expense of the house owners and tenants peace and quiet in the early hours of the
morning especially every day.
If there are any questions in regard to my objection off this application I can either be contacted by email or on my mobile

Yours faithfully

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0wf48m6IQG0e093CBqJzEUovsrfkhD8nDWyNGo7rRy1eEf4/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&permthid…

1/1

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Re: Application for “shadow licence” 154- 166 Clarence Street KUT KT1 1QP Pryzm - The …

19/03/2021

A46

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Re: Application for “shadow licence” 154- 166 Clarence Street KUT KT1 1QP Pryzm The Bank of New York Mellon (International) Limited
1 message
18 March 2021 at 19:13
To: RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

On 18 Mar 2021, at 18:52, RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk> wrote:
Dear
Can you please supply your full address in order to accept your representation.
Regards,
Mandy Cooper
Environmental Protection Officer
Licensing Team
Kingston & Sutton Shared Environment Service
Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames | Guildhall II | High Street | Kingston upon Thames | KT1 1EU
Tel: 020 8547 5080
Email: licensing@kingston.gov.uk
www.kingston.gov.uk | www.sutton.gov.uk

On Thu, 18 Mar 2021 at 17:34,

wrote:

To Licensing

The licence for this establishment is the most reviewed licence in RBK because of crime and disorder. In
essence Pryzm is the biggest licenced business threat to RBK resident’s health and safety because of
the crime and disorder it generates.

This existing licence and therefore this proposed ‘shadow’ is subject to review and consultation, this year
(2021).

Whilst Grove Ward continues to be referred to as “Kingston’s crime hotspot” by local press, in 2019
violence and sexual offences amounted to 53, the highest ever, whilst anti-social behaviour recorded 61.
A total of 335 crimes including bicycle theft, criminal damage, arson, vehicle crime and 72 theft.
https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0wHKT-_ZCjqGCg5kDR8EmscrzogNnizG7y6M6xDJfBJj1VJ/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&permthid=…

1/2

19/03/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Re: Application for “shadow licence” 154- 166 Clarence Street KUT KT1 1QP Pryzm - The …

A47

Obviously, the sad recent event in London will put a spotlight on such venue licence conditions and the
safety of women when reviewing the existing licence. Recently the RBK leader Cllr Kerr announced a
Making Kingston safer for women Borough Task Force stating “Within Kingston the safety of all women
and girls has always been a high priority for us and that’s why we are committed to safeguarding and
preventing harm.”
The Task Force was also supported by Councillor (O) Boult, too concerned about women and the night
time economy, both Councillors live within Grove Ward.

During the last safety review, the police raised alarming concerns with the Met Police Counsel summing
up the following.

“ It’s not a question of numbers, it’s a question of what people do."

He pointed to the rise in violent crime at night in central Kingston, and added.

"Police are struggling to keep a lid on the town centre, and that’s with the backdrop of other local venues
closing."

Whilst this application is for a ‘mirror licence’ it is not a ‘Get Out of Jail for Free’ card should the holders of
the current licence breach their conditions. Indeed, the existing licence conditions are subject to
amendment following the consultation.

There is no reason to issue another licence to an Asset Management company, (Mellon Bank) that has
no previous history as a licence holder. If for whatever reason it was really believed to be necessary to
grant a ‘mirror’ licence, it should be considered after the forthcoming review and consultation of the
current licence.

Therefore Should Not Be Granted

Disclaimers apply, for full details see : (https://www.kingston.gov.uk/email-disclaimer)

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0wHKT-_ZCjqGCg5kDR8EmscrzogNnizG7y6M6xDJfBJj1VJ/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&permthid=…

2/2

A48

London House
105 Clarence Street
Kingston upon Thames
KT1 1QL
18 March 2021

Kingston and Sutton Shared Environment Service
Enforcement Group
RBK, Guildhall 2
High Street. KUT. KT1 1EU
BY EMAIL
Your ref: EH – LIC/043700
Dear Sirs,

Application for new identical “shadow licence” 154- 166 Clarence Street KUT
KT1 1QP Pryzm for The Bank of New York Mellon (International) Limited
(Mellon)
I write to object to the above licence changes . I live at London House which is very near
Pryzm .
We suffer trespass, vandalism, noise, fouling and litter from Pryzm patrons all of which has
repeatedly been documented and sent to RBK licencing with no impact for many years .The
police have shown in their last posted out stats in July 2019 ( even with the student population
depleted , Grove ward has the highest crimes of all types in RBK. (Doc 1 )
The outcome we want is the new licence is not granted.
Purpose of licencing
Committee are reminded the judicial view of the Licencing Act 2003 in R (Daniel
Thwaites plc) v Wirral Borough Magistrates' Court and Others [2008] EWHC 838 (Admin) at
para. 13:
"The Licensing Act 2003 was intended to provide a 'more efficient' 'more responsive' and
'flexible' system of licensing which did not interfere unnecessarily. It aimed to give business
greater freedom and flexibility to meet the expectations of customers and to provide greater
choice for consumers whilst protecting local residents from disturbance and anti-social
behaviour."
And at para. 42:
"… the Act anticipates that a 'light touch bureaucracy' (a phrase used in para 5.99 of the
Guidance) will be applied to the grant and variation of premises licences."
Note the emphasis on protection for local residents from disturbance and anti social
behaviour and that the light touch approach must not lessen that . So even of the committee
is minded to be light touch they must do so ensuring local residents are protected.
Residents have a legitimate expectation
Council of Civil Service Unions v Minister for Civil Service 1985 (AC 385) the test of “ a
legitimate expectation may arise from either an express promise given on behalf of a public
authority .. which the claimant can reasonably expect “ must be satisfied for the benefit of all
residents. The promise is set out in the RBK licencing policy.
Why the application
Mellon is the freeholder wanting to protect the current licence. Mellon as an entity have no
history as licencees , they are asset managers and I suspect do not even know RBK’ s

A49

Director of Public Health for the first time objected to changes at Pryzm in fear of greater
public nuisance and crime and disorder. That speaks volume about the fear Pryzm creates in
RBK . Simply even RBK consider Pryzm should not have more licencing benefit . A duplicate
licence does give more benefit .
The land (Doc 2)
The title shows a restrictive covenant entry 5 in the Charges Register the land is to only be
used as a house or police purposes so showing as far back as 1914 the land Is not supposed
to be for the sale of alcohol or entertainment. There are no grounds for RBK to make the
breach worse .
3.Current 2018 licence conditions and breaches ( not provided )
The licence conditions are poorly drafted to include:
The previous condition for door staff to wear body web cams has gone
Condition 43 – I know the dispersal policy has never been reviewed despite many complaints
from residents about noise and vandalism between 2- 4 am so we know the people involved
are from Pryzm because no other premises is open at that time . I have written in many times
about this.
Condition 47 the last time I had a tel number was c2013 and no one answered and when
one lady did, she said she was too busy. In any event what is the point of this condition –
why should we be woken up and then have to rely on one individual who may not have the
staff to come and deal with our problems if say another 3 residents in other streets have also
called?
Condition 48 – At best 2 meetings happened and Pryzm management did not want to hear
what residents had to say , we got fobbed of with “lets look forward” .Their security staff
parked in our car park without consent, they denied it until I produced car registration
numbers . Suddenly no more parking. Simply we cannot trust Pryzm staff or contractors.

The RBK Special Condition Cumulative Impact Policy (CIP) (not provided)
Is so poorly drafted it does not deal with “ shadow “ licences but if we take the spirit
of it then the applicant must satisfy paragraph 1.6 there is no adverse impact in the
shadow licence being granted. Frankly I cannot see how they can. The applicant
may try the argument of we have no intention of using the shadow licence , in that
case withdraw the application or RBK must not grant.
2. The CIU licence with extended hours has happened so this application must be
viewed in light of that and the CIP.
1.

To grant breaches the 4 licencing objectives
Prevention of crime and disorder – Pryzm’ s licence is the most reviewed licence in RBK
because of crime and disorder . In essence Pryzm is the biggest licenced business threat to
RBK residents health and safety because of the crime and disorder it generates.
Disorder – RBK is to now close all its public toilets despite public opposition. When the review
happened in 2012/3 after the fatal stabbing at the premises , RBK licencing had to agree to
keep public toilets open because of Pryzm at the Cattle Market parking nearby and others .
See my reminder to Grove ward councillors, the Licencing Portfolio holder and the Leader –
no reply from any of them .
Public Safety – the reviews were brought by the police because of Public Safety concerns
Prevention of Public Nuisance –licencing can tell you how many email complaints I have put
in to RBK .
Protection of Children from Harm

A50
•

RBK has built family sized 3 bedroom social housing opposite Pryzm which are fully
occupied and has now granted planning permission to build more there. Children are
deliberately housed opposite one of the biggest violent crime spots in the biggest
violent crime ward in RBK .

•

Cllr Self ( former Deputy Leader) at the CIU licencing committee openly stated
additional cars going to the CIU now it has its extended alcohol licence was not a
problem because the area is busy enough with cars already anyway.

•

This from councillors who have declared a borough climate emergency and RBK is
appointing its first Air Quality Officer because RBK has 2 of the highest pollution
spots in London , one at Cromwell Road , all of 100 feet from Pryzm . You could not
make up this lack of joined up thinking if you tried.

•

It is clear Pryzm needs lots of car pick up points from the statements made in the
2018 review about putting in an Uber station . Attached are the pick up sites just for
Pryzm .(Doc 3) So before any argument is made that Pryzm does not generate that
many cars in the town centre, yes it does. And as RBK have put out here is all the
pollution from those idling engines ( Doc 4 ) plus as shown in the demo on 17 March ,
children have a 47% higher chance of asthma in RBK than other London boroughs.

•

This is not a quantitively assessed objective, it is qualitive so as more cars will harm a
child the objective is not met so the licence must be refused .

•

Simply more cars = more harm to a child (ren) any time of the day.

•

The national mantra of “ Stay Home Save the NHS Save Lives “was put out as
recently as 10 March 2021 in the RBK borough newsletter so RBK want people to
follow that ( Doc 5) . To refuse this licence would help achieve that .

The need to sustain a live music venue argument
Is not a valid argument as live music can be played at The Rose/RGS theatre/the Arthur
Cotterill theatre all within a stones throw from Pryzm , so no problem with access for all
including the disabled. Banquet Records the promoters of live music have shown that its
biggest name live music event was perfectly well served at The Rose when they put on
Stormzy there.
Women’s safety post Sarah Everard (Doc 5)
I think Cllr Olivia Boult has nicely put out in the public domain how unsafe it is for women in RBK
which was brave as it goes against her employers business to put on gigs at Pryzm . To grant this
licence adds to the risk women residents encounter in RBK which on public policy grounds must be
avoided. Cllr Kerr as Leader since has also acknowledged the same , she too lives in Grove ward.
Conclusion - never a truer word that Pryzm is harmful to Kingston town centre residents
James Rankin of Counsel in 2018 for the Met police at the last Pryzm licence review

not a question of numbers, it’s a question of what people do."

“ It’s

He pointed to the rise in violent crime at night in central Kingston, and
added: "Police are struggling to keep a lid on the town centre, and that’s
with the backdrop of other local venues closing."

Yours faithfully,

DOC 1

A51

A52
DOC 2

A53

A54

A55

DOC 3

A56

A57

DOC 4

More information: Alex Bigham,
Pictures / graphics: http://bit.ly/buspollution

in London

Photo Call: Broadcast Media and Photographers are invited to attend the unveiling of the playground
stencils on Wednesday 17 March 2021 at 08:30 at Kingston Rail Station, Wood Street, KT1 1UJ

“The Wheels on the Bus Make Toxic Air” - Parent
groups warn diesel buses choking young children
 Parent activists ‘Mums for Lungs’ demand London mayoral candidates tackle

toxic air pollution from diesel buses
 New analysis shows how NO pollution from diesel buses in London is 62%
higher in the most deprived areas compared to the least
x

 Only 3% of current bus routes in London are electric but none of £3bn PM

pledged this week to clean buses will go to London
 Call for London mayoral candidates to commit to zero emissions buses across

capital by 2030
 Hard-hitting nursery rhyme campaign highlights health dangers to children using

#Mayor4CleanAir

Campaign groups representing parents, health workers and young people have joined forces
today to call for the next Mayor of London to tackle air pollution from diesel buses on the
capital’s roads and commit to a zero-emission bus fleet.

The campaigners have launched a hard-hitting playground nursery stencil campaign to
highlight the dangers of diesel pollution to public health, particularly for young children. They
are installing adapted nursery rhymes in a graffiti art campaign aimed at raising awareness
amongst parents and children of the dangers of air pollution.

In one adapted rhyme, the wheels on the diesel-powered bus don’t just go round and round,
they also make “toxic air.” The graphic is being installed in a special Covid-secure
playground in Kingston, South London. Another stencil states “Humpty Dumpty sat on the
wall because Humpty Dumpty had an asthma attack”.

A58

There are currently no electric bus routes in Kingston despite there being illegal levels of air
pollution and the asthma-related hospital admissions rate for young children is 47% higher
than the rate for England.

The call for action coincides with new data modelling and analysis by Environmental
Defense Fund Europe (EDF Europe) that finds harmful NO pollution from TfL diesel buses
is on average 62% higher in London’s most deprived areas than the least. (1) NO pollution
is especially harmful to children and can contribute to reduced lung function.
x

x

Concerned parents Mums for Lungs and Black and brown teen activists Choked Up, along
with health workers Medact and scientists at EDF Europe, are calling on London’s mayoral
candidates to protect children’s health and address health inequities by speeding up the
rollout of electric buses and delivering a zero-emission bus fleet this decade. Cities such as
Los Angeles, Copenhagen and Amsterdam have already set targets to remove diesel buses
by 2030 or sooner.
Earlier this week, the Prime Minister promised £3bn to fund new, cleaner bus services.
However, none of the money will be allocated to London, despite having some of the worst
pollution levels in the country. (2)
Only 3% of London’s bus routes are currently electric or hydrogen, with TfL aiming to reach
7% by 2022. (3) Under existing plans, it will take more than 15 years for the city’s fleet to be
diesel-free. (4) This follows research showing that only 6% of newly-registered urban buses
in the UK were electric or hydrogen in 2019, compared to 66% in the Netherlands. (5)
The campaign is supported by a letter from more than 100 health workers to London
Mayoral candidates stressing the need for accessible and affordable zero-emission public
transport. (6) It mirrors a call from the Prime Minister for “better buses” to protect the
environment and town centre economies as we build back from the pandemic. (7)
Marilyn Mason, a parent and member of the Kingston Environment Forum, said:
“As things go back to ‘normal’, traffic and air pollution is rising again. Eden Street and
Cromwell Road in Kingston are two of the most polluted streets and amongst the busiest bus
routes in London. Kingston’s one-way system takes all that bus traffic past several schools
causing harm to children’s development.”
“Changing to a zero-emission bus fleet is a TfL responsibility, but it seems to be all too easy
to neglect the outer suburbs and our health needs when making London-wide transport
policies. This is no longer tolerable, and we hope that all London Assembly candidates will
commit to transport policies that will lead to clean air across the whole of London.”

A59

Jemima Hartshorn, a parent who lives in south London and is part of the Mums for
Lungs group, said:
“For families who live close to a busy bus route which is a large percentage of Londoners
there is the constant anxiety of the impact it is having on your child. We need the next Mayor
of London to commit to all buses becoming zero emissions, whilst ensuring they are the
most affordable and accessible way to get around.”

An inquest in late 2020 confirmed air pollution, especially from diesel vehicles, was a direct
cause of the death of the nine-year old Ella Kissi-Debrah, who lived near the South Circular.
The founders of Choked Up, a youth organisation of Black and brown teenagers, including
friends of Ella who live along highly polluted roads in South London, want to make sure that
never happens again.
Destiny Boka Batesa, from Choked Up said:
“As young people we have to take the bus to get to school or to meet our friends. We don’t
want to be risking our lives to make essential journeys. We need the next Mayor of London
to rid our city of diesel and prioritise clean air so we can grow up in a safe, healthy
environment.”
New air quality modelling and analysis at select kerbside locations outside central London
shows a zero-emission bus fleet in London could reduce levels of the toxic gas nitrogen
dioxide (NO ) by up to 13%. (8) This is critical to helping Londoners breathe safer levels of
air pollution, and should form part of a comprehensive plan to address harmful pollution from
major roads and diesel cars and vans.
2

The Government has started a consultation to end sales of diesel buses in the UK but it is
unclear whether any of the 4,000 zero-emission buses they have committed to deliver from
next year will be earmarked for London. (9)
Oliver Lord, Head of Policy and Campaigns at the Environmental Defense Fund
Europe, said:
“Buses are already one of the most efficient and affordable ways for people to get around,
and they are critical to helping people be less reliant on cars. Currently just 3% of London’s
bus routes are electric, meaning there is a huge opportunity to put a cleaner fleet at the heart
of a green recovery that benefits marginalised communities the most. By prioritising electric
buses in the most deprived areas and delivering a zero-emission bus fleet this decade,
London Mayoral candidates can help to tackle health inequities, create jobs and keep the
city moving.”
Playground Stencils
Based on children’s games like hopscotch as well as famous nursery rhymes, campaigners
have created a covid-friendly playground using pavement stencils, which incorporates air
pollution messaging in Kingston town centre.
Bus pollution in Kingston
 Kingston Cromwell Road monitoring station, close to the bus garage, has

consistently breached legal NO air pollution limits. (10)
2

 St Joseph’s Catholic Primary School, close to Kingston town centre where

families shop, TfL buses account for up to 24% of NOx pollution from road
transport. (11)

A60

<image001.png>

ENDS
For more information / bids, please contact:
Alex Bigham, PR Lead,
Editor’s Notes
A zero-emission bus fleet is considered to consist of only buses with no combustion engine or tailpipe
(i.e. 100% electric or hydrogen powered). However, as with all motor vehicles, buses will continue to
emit PM2.5 from tyre and brake wear.
Transport for London has roughly 9,000 buses in its fleet. The current Mayor of London’s transport
strategy is to deliver a zero emission bus fleet by 2037.
NO pollution forms when fossil fuels such as coal, oil, gas or diesel are burned at high temperatures.
It can cause reduced lung function in children, trigger asthma attacks and hospital admissions for
children. Recent studies have linked the pollutant to lung cancer, cardiovascular harm, lower birth
weight in newborns and increased risk of premature death. NO also forms chemically in the
atmosphere from nitric oxide (NO) which is also produced by fossil fuel combustion. NO and NO are
collectively known as NO . (12)
2

2

2

x.

A61

PM pollution refers to very fine particulates - with a size generally less than 2.5 micrometres (µm). It
is contained in pollution from petrol and diesel vehicles as well as woodsmoke and industry. This
microscopic material when breathed in can penetrate deep into the lungs and can then be absorbed
into the bloodstream. This form of pollution is associated with health conditions such as heart disease,
stroke, lung cancer as well as diabetes and dementia. High levels of PM pollution can trigger asthma
attacks, heart attacks and other serious medical emergencies, and has a long term impact on lung
function particularly in children. (13)
2.5

2.5

Mums for Lungs (mumsforlungs.org) is a group of London parents that campaigns for clean air. The
group was established in Brixton in 2017, when a number of us were on maternity leave together.
Walking around South London with small babies we became aware of the toxic levels of air pollution
on London’s streets.
Environmental Defense Fund Europe (edfeurope.org globalcleanair.org/), a leading international
nonprofit organization, creates transformational solutions to the most serious environmental problems.
EDF links science, economics, law and innovative private-sector partnerships. With more than 2.5
million members and offices in the United States, China, Mexico, Indonesia and the UK, EDF’s
scientists, economists, attorneys and policy experts are working in 23 countries to turn our solutions
into action.

Choked Up (@ChokedUp_UK) is a campaign group of Black & Brown teens living in areas affected
by air pollution. Founded in 2020, Choked Up explores the inequalities associated with air pollution
and aims to enshrine our right to clean air in
law. https://www.theguardian.com/commentisfree/2020/dec/17/breathe-air-ella-kissi-debrah-rulingpollution-death
Instagram: https://www.instagram.com/chokedup_uk/?hl=en-gb
Email: wearechokedup@gmail.com

A62

Medact (www.medact.org) has a mission to support health professionals from all disciplines to work
together towards a world in which everyone can truly achieve and exercise their human right to
health. We do this through research and evidence-based campaigning for solutions to the social,
political and economic conditions which damage health, deepen health inequalities and threaten
peace and security. Email: robabrams@medact.org, beneder@medact.org.
1. EDF Europe analysis using high resolution source apportionment modelling for the Breathe
London pilot project and Index of Multiple Deprivation data from the Ministry of Housing, Communities
& Local Government.
2.

Bus Back Better: national bus strategy for England (publishing.service.gov.uk)

3. Transport for London
4. The current Mayor of London’s Transport Strategy commits to a zero emission bus fleet by 2037
5. https://www.transportenvironment.org/press/denmark-luxembourg-netherlands-lead-wayemissions-free-buses
6. https://stat.medact.org/uploads/2021/03/Mayoral-letter-Medact-Mar-21.pdf
7.

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/prime-minister-launches-3-billion-bus-revolution

8. Policy scenario modelling carried out for Breathe London pilot project
9. https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/ending-the-sale-of-new-dieselbuses/ending-of-the-sale-of-new-diesel-buses
10. Kingston upon Thames Air Quality Annual Status Reports
11. High resolution source apportionment modelling data (March 2021) for Breathe London
Pilot Project
12. Nitrogen Dioxide | American Lung Association
13. Health matters: air pollution - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

A63

DOC 5

A64

A65

A66

A67

A68

Clarence Street Limited
London House
105 Clarence Street
Kingston upon Thames
KT1 1QL
18th March 2021
Kingston and Sutton Shared Environment Service
Regulatory Services
RBK, Guildhall 2
High Street
Kingston upon Thames
KT1 1EU
BY EMAIL
Your ref: EH – LIC/043700
Dear Sirs,

Re: An application for a new premises licence for Pryzm, 154-166 Clarence Street,
Kingston upon Thames, KT1 1QP

We write further to your letter dated 19 February 2021 in which you notified owners and
occupiers of London House that the Council had received a licence in respect of the above
named premises. Please record our objection to that application for the reasons stated below.
For clarity, Clarence Street Limited (Company number 03674508) runs a service charge at
London House.

We note that the application is made by Bank of New York Mellon (International) Limited
(the landlord) and is for what has commonly become termed a ‘shadow’ or ‘mirror’ licence.
The premises already benefits from a licence (PL0323), first granted on 24 November 2005
and which was recently transferred to CC STIM UK TRADECO 1 LTD on 29 December
2020. This presents an entirely unclear picture overall and a concerning state of affairs.
Section 16 (1) (a) – (i) of the Licensing Act 2003 provides for various categories of person to
apply for a premises licence. Most applicants typically fall within the remit of s.16 (1) (a),
namely “a person who carries on, or proposes to carry on, a business which involves the use
of the premises for the licensable activities to which the application relates …” We say at the
outset that we have no idea whether the applicant proposes to carry on a business which
involves the use of the building as Pryzm. We would anticipate that the applicant should be
put to task about such intentions or whether it considers itself to be a different category of
1

A69

applicant. It is only upon understanding its purpose or intentions, that the Authority is in a
position to consider whether the application may be granted in accordance with the promotion
of the licensing objectives.
We are aware that the term ‘shadow’ or ‘mirror’ licence does not appear within the
Legislation. Similarly, we are aware that the Act does not require secondary licensees to carry
on a licensable activity (see Hall & Woodhouse Ltd v. Poole Borough Council [2009] EWHC
1587 (Admin), [2009] LLR 436, QBD at [23] – [25] per Richards L.J. and in relation to a pub
landlord). Nevertheless, it is essential that the applicant provides clarity for this contextualises
the application as a whole.

Notwithstanding some judicial intervention regarding the concept of such applications (see R
(Extreme Oyster And Star Oyster Ltd) v. Guildford Borough Council [2013] EWHC 2174
(Admin), [2014] LLR 126, QBD) we consider that it is important that the applicant provides
sufficient information and evidence as to its stated intentions and not just explaining that it is
the landlord. You will be aware that in the ‘Extreme Oyster’ case, the applicant put forward a
number of stated intentions, including that it may run the business for a period of time should
the existing tenant go into liquidation or should it be required to retake possession of the
building. We have absolutely no understanding of this applicant’s rationale even if we may
make an educated guess. We are left wondering if there is any genuine proposal to carry on a
business within the meaning of the Act.

We consider that the following matters go to the heart of this application and require further
scrutiny from the licensing committee. We consider that the matters explained below are
relevant to this application and to the four licensing objectives which must be adhered to.

1. Cumulative impact
We are cognisant of the Council’s Special Policy on Cumulative Impact, which creates a
policy where the presumption is to refuse an application for new premises licences. We
consider that this presumption remains, eve where the applicant requests a mirror licence. We
do not see that this position has been acknowledged or dealt with by the applicant.
That policy states that the policy will be ‘strictly applied’ and that it ‘will only be overridden
in the most exceptional circumstances’. We do not see that any exception circumstances apply
here and the applicant ought to be put to strict proof of the same.

2

A70

2. Existing issues

Albeit the ongoing Pandemic has necessarily curtailed the use of the premises, we do consider
that there is an established pattern of continued issues with the venue which would, in our
view, require the applicant to address. Simply mirroring or shadowing an existing licence
would not be sufficient.

Specifically, we would ask that the committee note the following matters:

(a) That the licence remains the most reviewed licence in the Royal Borough of Kingston
upon Thames (RBK) .This presents significant question marks as to its suitability
overall.

(b) Grove ward has persistently and consistently suffered the highest record for violent
crime. This terrifying position must have relevance when this application must be
considered alongside a duty to promote the prevention of such crimes. We also point
out that the Council’s own policy ‘recognises that licensed premises, particularly late
night venues, can be a focus of crime and disorder problems’.

(c) That the current conditions (which the applicant intends to mirror) require meetings
with residents. Officers claim to have attended but cannot produce minutes or any
recollection. I recall one only meeting pre 2018. Therefore what would the present
applicant propose?
(d) That there was an application in 2018 to create ‘Bar and Beyond’ which did not in
fact happen. This attempt to reconstitute the venue in some way was therefore
nothing more than aspirational at best.

(e) There have been ongoing concerns regarding the dispersal noise from the venue and
the pick-up points utilised by taxis. We consider that this goes to the heart of the
public nuisance objective and it is unacceptable for the residents to be interrupted in
this way. We are entitled to peaceful enjoyment of our property, indeed your policy
acknowledges that ‘the Borough has a substantial residential population and the
authority has a responsibility to protect it from nuisance’.
(f) The impact of the closure of public toilets set out in the 2021/2022 budget is to save
just £40k.
3

A71

3. Further problems

Once more, we acknowledge the level of uncertainty created by the ongoing pandemic. We
recognise that the present road map out of lockdown (COVID-19 Response - Spring 2021
(Summary) - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)) envisages the step 4 date of 21 June 2021 to be the
earliest possible date for the re-opening of large venues such as the present. However, we
consider that the applicant ought properly to address the reality of the present situation as a
means of explaining its intentions overall should it be genuinely proposing to carry on a
business here.

We consider that the following matters ought to be addressed:

(a) The applicant’s operational plan for its business in the event that it is to run Pryzm
post lockdown.
(b) The applicant’s proposal to deal with the fact that social housing has been built
opposite the venue which is now fully occupied. Indeed, planning permission has
now been granted for more housing there. This has brought and will bring a number
of additional residents and, in particular, additional children into close proximity to
the venue.
(c) The applicant’s proposal to mitigate the impact of additional vehicular traffic to the
venue given the borough’s unacceptable level of pollution and the Council’s
declaration of a climate emergency. This is harmful to residents and a clear nuisance.
(d) The applicant’s proposal to ensure the safety of patrons, and in particular female
patrons. There is no suitable area anywhere on the public highway or within the
premises to have as a “holding area” (like cattle?) until vehicular transport can be
found for female patrons because of the COVID -19 risk and as the premises are next
to 3 busy lanes of traffic. If taxis/Ubers/mini cabs are to idle directly outside the
premises they will inevitably block the flow of traffic so defeating the existing
dispersal policy.
(e) Women feeling fear and of being unsafe in RBK and particularly in Grove cannot be
underestimated by RBK. Even Cllr Olivia Boult of the current administration who

4

A72

lives and works in Grove ward, has put out on social media from Banquet Records
Twitter account how scared she is to be out in Grove ward.
We consider that the matters raised above go to the very heart of the Council’s own ‘vision
statement’ which acknowledges that it wants to make sure that venues are well managed. We
would question the Council’s ability to act consistently with such a vision where the
intentions of the applicant are entirely unclear.

For all these reasons, we object to the application and do not consider that it would be
appropriate to grant the same. We consider that this matter calls into question the propriety of
the existing licence albeit we accept that this would be for a separate process to intervene.
Yours faithfully,

For and on behalf of Clarence Street Limited

5

A73

London House
105 Clarence Street
Kingston upon Thames
KT1 1QL
18 March 2021

Kingston and Sutton Shared Environment Service
Enforcement Group
RBK, Guildhall 2
High Street. KUT. KT1 1EU
BY EMAIL
Your ref: EH – LIC/043700
Dear Sirs,

Application for new identical “shadow licence” 154- 166 Clarence Street KUT
KT1 1QP Pryzm for The Bank of New York Mellon (International) Limited
(Mellon)
I write to object to the above licence changes on behalf of London House Property
Management Company Limited (LHPM) which is the service charge company for the 10 flats
at London House which is very near Pryzm .I am a director and shareholder in LHPM.
We suffer trespass, vandalism, noise, fouling and litter from Pryzm patrons all of which has
repeatedly been documented and sent to RBK licencing with no impact for many years . The
police have shown in their last posted out stats in July 2019 ( even with the student population
depleted , Grove ward has the highest crimes of all types in RBK. (Doc 1 )
The outcome we want is the new licence is not granted.
Purpose of licencing
Committee are reminded the judicial view of the Licencing Act 2003 in R (Daniel
Thwaites plc) v Wirral Borough Magistrates' Court and Others [2008] EWHC 838 (Admin) at
para. 13:
"The Licensing Act 2003 was intended to provide a 'more efficient' 'more responsive' and
'flexible' system of licensing which did not interfere unnecessarily. It aimed to give business
greater freedom and flexibility to meet the expectations of customers and to provide greater
choice for consumers whilst protecting local residents from disturbance and anti-social
behaviour."
And at para. 42:
"… the Act anticipates that a 'light touch bureaucracy' (a phrase used in para 5.99 of the
Guidance) will be applied to the grant and variation of premises licences."
Note the emphasis on protection for local residents from disturbance and anti social
behaviour and that the light touch approach must not lessen that . So even of the committee
is minded to be light touch they must do so ensuring local residents are protected.
Residents have a legitimate expectation
Council of Civil Service Unions v Minister for Civil Service 1985 (AC 385) the test of “ a
legitimate expectation may arise from either an express promise given on behalf of a public
authority .. which the claimant can reasonably expect “ must be satisfied for the benefit of all
residents. The promise is set out in the RBK licencing policy.
Why the application

A74

Mellon is the freeholder wanting to protect the current licence. Mellon as an entity have no
history as licencees , they are asset managers and I suspect do not even know RBK’ s
director of Public Health for the first time objected to changes at Pryzm in fear of greater
public nuisance and crime and disorder. That speaks volume about the fear Pryzm creates in
RBK . Simply even RBK consider Pryzm should not have more licencing benefit . A duplicate
licence does give more benefit .
The land (Doc 2 )
The title shows a restrictive covenant entry 5 in the Charges Register the land is to only be
used as a house or police purposes so showing as far back as 1914 the land Is not supposed
to be for the sale of alcohol or entertainment. There are no grounds for RBK to make the
breach worse .
3.Current 2018 licence conditions and breaches ( not provided )
The licence conditions are poorly drafted to include:
The previous condition for door staff to wear web cams has gone
Condition 43 – I know the dispersal policy has never been reviewed despite many complaints
from residents about noise and vandalism between 2- 4 am so we know the people involved
are from Pryzm because no other premises is open at that time . I have written in many times
about this.
Condition 47 the last time I had a tel number was c2013 and no one answered and when
one lady dis she said she was too busy. In any event what is the point of this condition – why
should we be woken up and then have to rely on one individual who may not have the staff to
come and deal with our problems if say another 3 residents in other streets have also called?
Condition 48 – At best 2 meetings happened and Pryzm management did not want to hear
what residents had to say , we got fobbed of with “lets look forward” .Their security staff
parked in our car park without consent, they denied it until I produced car registration
numbers . Suddenly no more parking. Simply we cannot trust Pryzm staff or contractors.

The RBK Special Condition Cumulative Impact Policy (CIP) (not provided)
1.

Is so poorly drafted it does not deal with “ shadow “ licences but if we take the spirit
of it then the applicant must satisfy paragraph 1.6 there is no adverse impact in the
shadow licence being granted. Frankly I cannot see how they can. The applicant
may try the argument of we have no intention of using the shadow licence , in that
case withdraw the application or RBK must not grant.

2. The CIU licence with extended hours has happened so this application must be
viewed in light of that and the CIP.

To grant breaches the 4 licencing objectives
Prevention of crime and disorder – Pryzm’ s licence is the most reviewed licence in RBK
because of crime and disorder . In essence Pryzm is the biggest licenced business threat to
RBK residents health and safety because of the crime and disorder it generates.
Disorder – RBK is to now close all its public toilets despite public opposition. When the review
happened in 2012/3 after the fatal stabbing at the premises , RBK licencing had to agree to
keep public toilets open because of Pryzm at the Cattle Market parking nearby and others .
See my reminder to Grove ward councillors, the Licencing Portfolio holder and the Leader –
no reply from any of them .
Public Safety – the reviews were brought by the police because of Public Safety concerns
Prevention of Public Nuisance –licencing can tell you how many email complaints I have put
in to RBK .

A75
Protection of Children from Harm
•

RBK has built family sized 3 bedroom social housing opposite Pryzm which are fully
occupied and has now granted planning permission to build more there. Children are
deliberately housed opposite one of the biggest violent crime spots in the biggest
violent crime ward in RBK .

•

Cllr Self ( former Deputy Leader) at the CIU licencing committee openly stated
additional cars going to the CIU now it has its extended alcohol licence was not a
problem because the area is busy enough with cars already anyway.

•

This from councillors who have declared a borough climate emergency and RBK is
appointing its first Air Quality Officer because RBK has 2 of the highest pollution
spots in London , one at Cromwell Road , all of 100 feet from Pryzm . You could not
make up this lack of joined up thinking if you tried.

•

It is clear Pryzm needs lots of car pick up points from the statements made in the
2018 review about putting in an Uber station . Attached are the pick up sites just for
Pryzm .(Doc 3) So before any argument is made that Pryzm does not generate that
many cars in the town centre, yes it does. And as RBK have put out here is all the
pollution from those idling engines ( Doc 4 ) plus as shown in the demo on 17 March ,
children have a 47% higher chance of asthma in RBK than other London boroughs.

•

This is not a quantitively assessed objective, it is qualitive so as more cars will harm a
child the objective is not met so the licence must be refused .

•

Simply more cars = more harm to a child (ren) any time of the day.

•

The national mantra of “ Stay Home Save the NHS Save Lives “was put out as
recently as 10 March 2021 in the RBK borough newsletter (Doc 5) so RBK want
people to follow that . To refuse this licence would help achieve that .

The need to sustain a live music venue argument
Is not a valid argument as live music can be played at The Rose/RGS theatre/the Arthur
Cotterill theatre all within a stones throw from Pryzm , so no problem with access for all
including the disabled. Banquet Records the promoters of live music have shown that its
biggest name live music event was perfectly well served at The Rose when they put on
Stormzy there.
Women’s safety post Sarah Everard (Doc 5)
I think Cllr Olivia Boult has nicely put out in the public domain how unsafe it is for women in RBK
which was brave as it goes against her employers business to put on gigs at Pryzm . To grant this
licence adds to the risk women residents encounter in RBK which on public policy grounds must be
avoided. Cllr Kerr as Leader has also acknowledged the same , she too lives in Grove ward.
Conclusion - never a truer word that Pryzm is harmful to Kingston town centre residents
James Rankin of Counsel in 2018 for the Met police at the last Pryzm licence review

not a question of numbers, it’s a question of what people do."

“ It’s

He pointed to the rise in violent crime at night in central Kingston, and
added: "Police are struggling to keep a lid on the town centre, and that’s
with the backdrop of other local venues closing."

Yours faithfully,

For and on behalf of LHPM

A76

A77

ANNEX 5
Location Plan

A78

ANNEX 6
Photographs of Location

Image capture October 2020 @2021 Google

Image capture October 2020 @2021 Google

A79

ANNEX 7
Secretary of States Guidance (April 2018)
1.2

The legislation provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory objectives
which must be addressed when licensing functions are undertaken.

1.3

The licensing objectives are:
 The prevention of crime and disorder;
 Public safety;
 The prevention of public nuisance; and
 The protection of children from harm.

1.4

Each objective is of equal importance. There are no other statutory licensing
objectives, so that the promotion of the four objectives is a paramount consideration
at all times.

1.5

However, the legislation also supports a number of other key aims and purposes.
These are vitally important and should be principal aims for everyone involved in
licensing work.
They include:
 protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and
noise nuisance

1.17



caused by irresponsible licensed premises;



giving the police and licensing authorities the powers they need to effectively
manage and police the night-time economy and take action against those
premises that are causing problems;



recognising the important role which pubs and other licensed premises play in our
local communities by minimising the regulatory burden on business, encouraging
innovation and supporting responsible premises;



providing a regulatory framework for alcohol which reflects the needs of local
communities and empowers local authorities to make and enforce decisions about
the most appropriate licensing strategies for their local area; and



encouraging greater community involvement in licensing decisions and giving
local residents the opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions that
may affect them.

Each application must be considered on its own merits and in accordance with the
Licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy; for example, if the application falls
within the scope of a cumulative impact policy. Conditions attached to licences and
certificates must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the
premises and events concerned. This is essential to avoid the imposition of
disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on premises where there is no
need for such conditions. Standardised conditions should be avoided and indeed may
be unlawful where they cannot be shown to be appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives in an individual case.

A80
Crime and disorder
2.1

Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of advice on crime
and disorder. They should also seek to involve the local Community Safety
Partnership (CSP).

2.2

In the exercise of their functions, licensing authorities should seek to co-operate with
the Security Industry Authority (“SIA”) as far as possible and consider adding
relevant conditions to licences where appropriate. The SIA also plays an important
role in preventing crime and disorder by ensuring that door supervisors are properly
licensed and, in partnership with police and other agencies, that security companies
are not being used as fronts for serious and organised criminal activity. This may
include making specific enquiries or visiting premises through intelligence led
operations in conjunction with the police, local authorities and other partner
agencies. Similarly, the provision of requirements for door supervision may be
appropriate to ensure that people who are drunk, drug dealers or people carrying
firearms do not enter the premises and ensuring that the police are kept informed.

2.3

Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder. For
example, where there is good reason to suppose that disorder may take place, the
presence of closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras both inside and immediately
outside the premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-social behaviour
and crime generally. Some licence holders may wish to have cameras on their
premises for the prevention of crime directed against the business itself, its staff, or
its customers. But any condition may require a broader approach, and it may be
appropriate to ensure that the precise location of cameras is set out on plans to
ensure that certain areas are properly covered and there is no subsequent dispute
over the terms of the condition.

2.4

The inclusion of radio links and ring-round phone systems should be considered an
appropriate condition for public houses, bars and nightclubs operating in city and
town centre leisure areas with a high density of licensed premises. These systems
allow managers of licensed premises to communicate instantly with the police and
facilitate a rapid response to any disorder which may be endangering the customers
and staff on the premises.

2.5

Conditions relating to the management competency of designated premises
supervisors should not normally be attached to premises licences. It will normally be
the responsibility of the premises licence holder as an employer, and not the licensing
authority, to ensure that the managers appointed at the premises are competent and
appropriately trained. The designated premises supervisor is the key person who will
usually be responsible for the day to day management of the premises by the
premises licence holder, including the prevention of disorder. A condition of this kind
may only be justified as appropriate in rare circumstances where it can be
demonstrated that, in the circumstances associated with particular premises, poor
management competency could give rise to issues of crime and disorder and public
safety.
The prevention of crime includes the prevention of immigration crime including the
prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. Licensing authorities should work
with Home Office Immigration Enforcement, as well as the police, in respect of these
matters. Licence conditions that are considered appropriate for the prevention of
illegal working in licensed premises might include requiring a premises licence holder
to undertake right to work checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or

2.6

A81
requiring that a copy of any document checked as part of a right to work check are
retained at the licensed premises.
Public safety
2.7

Licence holders have a responsibility to ensure the safety of those using their
premises, as a part of their duties under the 2003 Act. This concerns the safety of
people using the relevant premises rather than public health which is addressed in
other legislation. Physical safety includes the prevention of accidents and injuries and
other immediate harms that can result from alcohol consumption such as
unconsciousness or alcohol poisoning. Conditions relating to public safety may also
promote the crime and disorder objective as noted above. There will of course be
occasions when a public safety condition could incidentally benefit a person’s health
more generally, but it should not be the purpose of the condition as this would be
outside the licensing authority’s powers (be ultra vires) under the 2003 Act.
Conditions should not be imposed on a premises licence or club premises certificate
which relate to cleanliness or hygiene.

2.8

A number of matters should be considered in relation to public safety. These may
include:


Fire safety;



Ensuring appropriate access for emergency services such as ambulances;



Good communication with local authorities and emergency services, for example
communications networks with the police and signing up for local incident alerts



Ensuring the presence of trained first aiders on the premises and appropriate first aid
kits;



Ensuring the safety of people when leaving the premises (for example, through the
provision of information on late-night transportation);



Ensuring appropriate and frequent waste disposal, particularly of glass bottles;



Ensuring appropriate limits on the maximum capacity of the premises



Considering the use of CCTV in and around the premises

2.9

The measures that are appropriate to promote public safety will vary between
premises and the matters listed above may not apply in all cases. As set out in
Chapter 8 (8.38- 8.46), applicants should consider when making their application
which steps it is appropriate to take to promote the public safety objective and
demonstrate how they achieve that.

Public nuisance
2.15

The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through
representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is
appropriate to prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises licences
and club premises certificates. It is therefore important that in considering the
promotion of this licensing objective, licensing authorities and responsible
authorities focus on the effect of the licensable activities at the specific premises on
persons living and working (including those carrying on business) in the area around
the premises which may be disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will
mainly concern noise nuisance, light pollution, noxious smells and litter.

A82
2.16

Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is
however not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law
meaning. It may include in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and
working amenity and environment of other persons living and working in the area of
the licensed premises. Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse
effects of artificial light, dust, odour and insects or where its effect is prejudicial to
health.

2.17

Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to
control the levels of noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a
simple measure such as ensuring that doors and windows are kept closed after a
particular time, or persons are not permitted in garden areas of the premises after a
certain time. More sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains
or rubber speaker mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises may be
appropriate. However, conditions in relation to live or recorded music may not be
enforceable in circumstances where the entertainment activity itself is not licensable
(see chapter 16). Any conditions appropriate to promote the prevention of public
nuisance should be tailored to the type, nature and characteristics of the specific
premises and its licensable activities. Licensing authorities should avoid
inappropriate or disproportionate measures that could deter events that are valuable
to the community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for example, are expensive to
purchase and install and are likely to be a considerable burden for smaller venues.

2.18

As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate in
certain circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect those
living in the area of the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach
of licensing authorities and responsible authorities should be one of prevention and
when their powers are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware of the fact
that other legislation may not adequately cover concerns raised in relevant
representations and additional conditions may be appropriate.

2.19

Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate conditions
should normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For example, the most
sensitive period for people being disturbed by unreasonably loud music is at night
and into the early morning when residents in adjacent properties may be attempting
to go to sleep or are sleeping. This is why there is still a need for a licence for
performances of live music between 11 pm and 8 am. In certain circumstances,
conditions relating to noise emanating from the premises may also be appropriate
to address any disturbance anticipated as customers enter and leave.

2.20

Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright lighting
outside premises which is considered appropriate to prevent crime and disorder may
itself give rise to light pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, licensing authorities
and responsible authorities will need to balance these issues.

2.21

Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the
personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in
anti-social behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly
reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant
representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits
from the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if
they wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of outside,
and to respect the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night.

A83
Protection of children from harm
2.22

The protection of children from harm includes the protection of children from moral,
psychological and physical harm. This includes not only protecting children from the
harms associated directly with alcohol consumption but also wider harms such as
exposure to strong language and sexual expletives (for example, in the context of
exposure to certain films or adult entertainment). Licensing authorities must also
consider the need to protect children from sexual exploitation when undertaking
licensing functions.

2.23

The Government believes that it is completely unacceptable to sell alcohol to children.
Conditions relating to the access of children where alcohol is sold and which are
appropriate to protect them from harm should be carefully considered. Moreover,
conditions restricting the access of children to premises should be strongly
considered in circumstances where:
• adult entertainment is provided;
• a member or members of the current management have been convicted for serving
alcohol to minors or with a reputation for allowing underage drinking (other than in
the context of the exemption in the 2003 Act relating to 16 and 17 year olds
consuming beer, wine and cider when accompanied by an adult during a table meal);
• it is known that unaccompanied children have been allowed access;
• there is a known association with drug taking or dealing; or
• in some cases, the premises are used exclusively or primarily for the sale of alcohol
for consumption on the premises.

2.24

It is also possible that activities, such as adult entertainment, may take place at
certain times on premises but not at other times. For example, premises may operate
as a café bar during the day providing meals for families but also provide
entertainment with a sexual content after 8.00pm. It is not possible to give an
exhaustive list of what amounts to entertainment or services of an adult or sexual
nature. Applicants, responsible authorities and licensing authorities will need to
consider this point carefully. This would broadly include topless bar staff, striptease,
lap-, table- or pole-dancing, performances involving feigned violence or horrific
incidents, feigned or actual sexual acts or fetishism, or entertainment involving strong
and offensive language.

2.25

Applicants must be clear in their operating schedules about the activities and times
at which the events would take place to help determine when it is not appropriate for
children to enter the premises. Consideration should also be given to the proximity of
premises to schools and youth clubs so that applicants take appropriate steps to
ensure that advertising relating to their premises, or relating to events at their
premises, is not displayed at a time when children are likely to be near the premises.

2.26

Licensing authorities and responsible authorities should expect applicants, when
preparing an operating schedule or club operating schedule, to set out the steps to
be taken to protect children from harm when on the premises.

2.27

Conditions, where they are appropriate, should reflect the licensable activities taking
place on the premises. In addition to the mandatory condition regarding age
verification, other conditions relating to the protection of children from harm can
include:


restrictions on the hours when children may be present;

A84


restrictions or exclusions on the presence of children under certain ages when
particular specified activities are taking place;



restrictions on the parts of the premises to which children may have access;



age restrictions



restrictions or exclusions when certain activities are taking place;



requirements for an accompanying adult (including for example, a combination of
requirements which provide that children under a particular age must be
accompanied by an adult); and



full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable activities
are taking place.

Other persons
8.13

As well as responsible authorities, any other person can play a role in a number of
licensing processes under the 2003 Act. This includes any individual, body or
business entitled to make representations to licensing authorities in relation to
applications for the grant, variation, minor variation or review of premises licences
and club premises certificates, regardless of their geographic proximity to the
premises. In addition, these persons may themselves seek a review of a premises
licence. Any representations made by these persons must be ‘relevant’, in that the
representation relates to one or more of the licensing objectives. It must also not be
considered by the licensing authority to be frivolous or vexatious. In the case of
applications for reviews, there is an additional requirement that the grounds for the
review should not be considered by the licensing authority to be repetitious. Chapter
9 of this guidance (paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10) provides more detail on the definition of
relevant, frivolous, vexatious and repetitious representations.

Determining applications
9.9

It is recommended that, in borderline cases, the benefit of the doubt about any
aspect of a representation should be given to the person making that representation.
The subsequent hearing would then provide an opportunity for the person or body
making the representation to amplify and clarify it.

Hearings
9.37 As a matter of practice, licensing authorities should seek to focus the hearing on the
steps considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing objective or objectives
that have given rise to the specific representation and avoid straying into undisputed
areas. A responsible authority or other person may choose to rely on their written
representation. They may not add further representations to those disclosed to the
applicant prior to the hearing, but they may expand on their existing representation and
should be allowed sufficient time to do so, within reasonable and practicable limits.
9.38 In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives in the
overall interests of the local community, the licensing authority must give appropriate
weight to:


the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives;



the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the parties;



this Guidance;

A85


its own statement of licensing policy.

Hours of trading
10.13 The Government acknowledges that different licensing strategies may be appropriate
for the promotion of the licensing objectives in different areas. The 2003 Act gives the
licensing authority power to make decisions about the hours during which premises
can conduct licensable activities as part of the implementation of its licensing policy
statement. Licensing authorities are best placed to make decisions about appropriate
opening hours in their areas based on their local knowledge and in consultation with
responsible authorities. However, licensing authorities must always consider each
application and must not impose predetermined licensed opening hours, without
giving individual consideration to the merits of each application.
10.14 Where there are objections to an application to extend the hours during which
licensable activities are to be carried on and the licensing authority determines that
this would undermine the licensing objectives, it may reject the application or grant it
with appropriate conditions and/or different hours from those requested.
10.15 Shops, stores and supermarkets should normally be free to provide sales of alcohol
for consumption off the premises at any times when the retail outlet is open for
shopping unless there are good reasons, based on the licensing objectives, for
restricting those hours.

A86

STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY (version 4 July 2016)
8.

The Council is responsible for licensing a range of activities related to the sale and
supply of alcohol, the provision of regulated entertainment and late night
refreshments.

9.

In carrying out its functions under the Act, the Licensing Authority has a duty to
promote the following licensing objectives:





11.

As well as the statutory objectives, the Act and guidance support a number of other
key aims and purposes linked to the licensable activities that are considered to be
vitally important. They include:






12.

the prevention of crime and disorder
public safety
the prevention of public nuisance
the protection of children from harm

protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and
noise nuisance caused by irresponsible licensed premises
giving the police and licensing authorities the powers they need to effectively
manage and police the night-time economy
recognising the important role that pubs and other licensed premises play in our
communities by minimising the regulatory burden on business, encouraging
innovation and supporting responsible premises
providing a regulatory framework for alcohol that reflects the needs of local
communities and empowers them to make and enforce decisions about the most
responsible licensing strategies for their local area, and
encouraging greater community involvement in licensing decisions and giving
local residents the opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions that
may impact on them.

The Council must set out how it will promote the statutory objectives and support the
other key aims and purposes in a Statement of Policy and this must strike a
reasonable balance between different and sometimes competing aims, including
widening the choice and appeal of licensed premises and the development of culture
and protection of local residents.

COMMENTING ON APPLICATIONS (MAKING REPRESENTATIONS)
50.

The Authority recognises that the Act, and the Secretary of State’s Guidance,
specifies what matters it may take into consideration when determining whether any
representation made is relevant. This will include a consideration whether any
representation made is frivolous or vexatious (as defined by guidance).

51.

Though not specified by the relevant legislation or guidance, the Authority will only
consider representations received in writing, be this by letter, facsimile, e-mail or via
our online portal. Representations must be made within the relevant time period
specified in the Act for the application type being considered.

A87

PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER
90.

The Authority recognises that licensed premises, particularly late night venues, can
be a focus of crime and disorder problems. Therefore, whether the premises make,
or will make, a significant contribution to levels of crime and disorder, and whether
the Operating Schedule is based on an adequate risk assessment, undertaken by the
applicant, of the likelihood of crime and disorder occurring as a result of the grant of
the application is a key criterion.

91.

Applicants must clearly set out and explain in their Operating Schedule how the
operation of the premises will promote the prevention of crime and disorder. For pubs,
bars and premises with facilities for music and dancing (e.g. night clubs), a specific
assessment is needed as to how the risks of violence and crime in the premises and
within the vicinity will be managed.

92.

Where relevant representations are made, the Authority will tailor appropriate
conditions for premises licenses and club premises certificates. In doing so, the
Authority will treat the Police as a main source of advice on appropriate conditions for
particular premises.

93.

The Authority will carry out its licensing functions so as to promote the prevention of
crime and disorder, by ensuring that Licence Holders take measures to regulate the
behaviour of persons on the premises and patrons who are in the vicinity.

PROOF OF AGE
95.

In October 2010 a Mandatory Condition came into force requiring premises with
Licences authorising the sale or supply of alcohol to implement an age verification
policy in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. The condition requires that the policy
must incorporate measures to ensure that individuals who appear to be under 18
years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on
request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of
birth and a holographic mark.

96.

The Authority recognises and supports the “Challenge 25” campaign, whereby
anyone appearing to be under the age of 25 is asked to provide identification to
demonstrate they are over 18, before being sold alcohol. The authority expects all
holders of licenses permitting the sale of alcohol to implement and actively publicise
“No ID – No Sale” schemes, and encourages applicants to adopt current best practice
on age verification policies – “Challenge 25”.

97.

Licence Holders are expected to include within their age verification policy:




documented training procedures to ensure staff are fully trained in age
verification procedures, including induction and regular refresher training with
signed records kept of that training.
use of till prompts in shops together with appropriate warning notices being
displayed at alcohol fixtures.
the use of refused sale records, which are regularly checked and signed off by
the Designated Premises Supervisor.

A88
98.

The Authority supports and recommends that premises accept identity cards bearing
the logo of the PASS accreditation scheme, which aims to approve and accredit
various proof of age schemes that are in existence and thereby ensures that such
schemes maintain high standards, particularly in the area of integrity and security.
Details of the PASS scheme are available from the Trading Standards Responsible
Authority

PUBLIC SAFETY
103.

Whether appropriate and satisfactory general and technical risk assessments,
management procedures and certificates have been made available to the relevant
responsible authority and the licensing authority that demonstrate that the public will
be safe within and in the vicinity of the premises are the key criteria relevant to this
objective.

104. The Authority must try to ensure the safety of people visiting and working in licensed
premises. It will therefore need to be satisfied that measures to promote public safety,
including risk assessments, setting safe capacities, adequate means of escape and,
where appropriate, CCTV are put in place and adequately maintained, if not provided
for by other regulatory regimes. As such, it is expected that applicants will
satisfactorily address these issues in their operating schedules and plans/drawings
submitted as part of the application process.
105. The Authority is not in a position to impose conditions on licences that relate to fire
safety legislation, for whom the enforcing authority is the London Fire and Emergency
Planning Authority [LFEPA]. However, given that applications must be submitted to
LFEPA, who may make representations on applications which are not considered to
be demonstrating the promotion of public safety, applicants are advised to make
contact with their local fire safety officer for advice regarding measures to ensure
adequate fire protection and means of escape prior to the submission of applications.
106. Whilst existing health and safety legislation will generally be sufficient to control risks
to the safety of the public in most premises, the Authority recognises that, in some
situations, statutory requirements may not be adequate, or be in place, to ensure
public safety. Where its right is invoked, the Authority may impose conditions
requiring the licence holder to take steps over and above minimum legal requirements
as may be necessary to ensure safety.
107.

It should be noted that conditions relating to public safety should be those that are
appropriate in the particular circumstances of any individual premises or club
premises, and should not duplicate other requirements of existing Health and Safety
Legislation. Equally, the attachment of conditions to a premises licence or club
premises certificate does not in any way relieve employers of their statutory duty to
comply with the requirements of primary Health and Safety or Fire Safety legislation.

PUBLIC NUISANCE
114.

The Borough has a substantial residential population and the authority has a
responsibility to protect it from nuisance. In certain locations, the increased
concentration of entertainment uses and longer hours of operation have adversely
affected local residents. Commercial occupiers of premises also have a legitimate
expectation of an environment that is attractive and help sustain their business. The
role of the Council as a licensing authority is to maintain an appropriate balance

A89
between the legitimate aspirations of the entertainment industry and the needs of
residents, businesses, workers, shoppers and visitors.
115. The potential for nuisance associated with the style, characteristics and activities of
the business to be carried on at the premises and the potential steps which could be
taken to reduce the risk of nuisance occurring are therefore the key criteria relevant
to this objective. This will particularly apply where there is residential accommodation
in the proximity of the premises.
116. The Authority will expect applicants to set out in their Operating Schedules the steps
taken, or proposed to be taken, to deal with the potential for public nuisance arising
from the operation of the premises or open air site under the licence.
117.

Applicants should identify and describe through a risk assessment how these risks
will be managed. Public nuisance could include low-level nuisance perhaps affecting
a small number of people living locally as well as major disturbance affecting the
whole community. It may include, in appropriate circumstances, a reduction of the
living and working amenity and environment of interested parties in the vicinity of
licensed premises.

PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM HARM
126.

The Authority supports the formation of family-friendly entertainment environments
and whether there are appropriate measures in place to protect children from harm
(including moral, psychological and physical harm) is the key criteria relevant to this
objective.

127.

Applicants are expected to demonstrate in their Operating Schedule that suitable and
sufficient measures have been identified and implemented to protect children from
harm, having regard to the style, characteristics and activities of the premises and
the activities provided. The measures expected to be considered may include staff
training on how to control the entry of young people under 18 and the vetting of staff
who will supervise them. Applicants will have to give particular regard to these
measures in applications for licences involving:




128.

the sale of alcohol
children’s performances
attractions or performances likely to attract children

It is an offence to sell alcohol to children (under 18). There is a further specific offence
of persistently selling alcohol to children if sales are made on 2 or more occasions
within 3 months. Unaccompanied children under 16 should not be on “premises being
used exclusively or primarily for the supply of alcohol” e.g. pubs, bars and nightclubs.
In addition, unaccompanied children should not be on licensed premises after
midnight but before 5.00 a.m. Operating Schedules should consider whether there
will be circumstances when children under 16 should not be on the premises and
whether they were there for a specific purpose such as partaking of a meal or being
entertained by live performances and whether there were any specific aspects of
licensable or other activities taking place where children should be excluded e.g.
drinks promotions or particular types of performances or competitions.

RESPONSIBLE RETAILING

A90
136.

The Authority expects all applicants and licence holders to recognise the
responsibility that the retail sale or supply of alcohol brings in order to promote the
licensing objective relating to the protection of children from harm.

NEIGHBOURHOOD SPECIFIC POLICIES ON THE PROMOTION OF THE LICENSING
OBJECTIVES
1. The Authority acknowledges that licensed premises located in some parts of the
Borough may have a greater impact upon the licensing objectives than similar
premises located in other areas. The following summarises the key characteristics
and challenges within specific neighbourhoods to help applicants. The Authority will
therefore expect applicants to take these factors into account when considering
what to include in their operating schedule and they must be prepared to justify why
appropriate recommended controls should not be applied in the event of
applications coming before a Sub-Committee.
2. Applicants are advised that Responsible Authorities will also expect the measures
relevant to the business operation to have been considered, and it is likely that
where deficiencies in the operating schedule are identified, representations are
likely to be made.
KINGSTON TOWN
3. The highest concentration of licensed premises is located within Kingston Town
Neighbourhood, and in particular within Grove Ward. This brings particular
concerns in relation to the impact that the number of premises has upon the
Licensing Objectives and as such, the Authority considers it necessary for tighter
controls (as set out in Operating Schedules – Additional Considerations) to be
applied to premises in this Neighbourhood.
OPERATING SCHEDULES – ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATIONS
1.

The following section sets out a range of additional considerations and controls that
the Authority may have regard to, depending on the location of the applicants
premises, in order to ensure that the licensing objectives are met. Some of the
controls described may have greater significance and be given greater emphasis by
the Licensing Sub-committee as a result.
Door Supervision

The use of door supervisors at licensed premises play a valuable role in
controlling queues, undertaking searches for the purpose of preventing drugs
or offensive weapons being admitted and for ensuring any capacity limits are
not exceeded

Whilst all applicants should assess whether the provision of door staff is
necessary for their business, the authority expects that all Pubs, Bars,
Nightclubs and premises offering Late Night Refreshment to provide door
supervisors. The number of door supervisors should be identified through
risk assessment and with due consideration to the health and safety of door
supervisors, staff and the public.

Where its right is invoked, the Authority will generally impose a condition
requiring door staff on licences for this type of premises, unless it can be

A91
demonstrated that such a condition is not appropriate for the promotion of
the licensing objectives.
Applicants and licence holders are expected to ensure that a policy on
searching customers is devised and implemented. Searches of persons
bags, or in some cases pat down or metal detector body searches may be
necessary to prevent and deter the bringing into licensed premises of drugs
and / or offensive weapons. Door supervisors are trained and equipped with
the necessary skills to undertake this task, and it may be necessary in
certain types of establishments for conditions to be included that require the
carrying out of searches.



CCTV systems
 CCTV cameras are a vital asset to both the licence holder and the regulatory
authorities. Footage obtained by CCTV has proven to be a vital source of
evidence in detecting crime at and immediately outside licensed premises.




Overt cameras also help deter criminal acts, such as theft of stock, and
whilst it is acknowledged that the installation of CCTV may incur
considerable expenditure, the Authority expects all applicants and licence
holders to consider providing CCTV systems
The Authority expects that CCTV systems will:
 cover all entrances, exits, internal and external areas of the premises.
 Ensure that images are stored for a minimum of 31 days
 Enable images to be delivered to Police or Council Officers in a
recognised format upon request
 be adequately maintained so as to operate and record at all times the
premises are open (for crime prevention purposes, it is recommended
that CCTV systems are operational 24 hours a day, using motion
sensors during non-opening hours).

Capacity Limits

In pubs, bars and nightclubs within Kingston Town Neighbourhood, the
Authority considers it necessary to impose limits on the number of persons
that may be present in order to ensure public safety, prevent overcrowding
and enable prompt exit by persons in the case of an emergency, for
example.

The Authority expects applicants to have considered the safe capacity for
their premises and to incorporate this figure into their operating schedule,
together with details of their measures for ensuring that this capacity is not
exceeded.
Control of glass drinking vessels

Glass drinking vessels can be used as weapons and when broken can inflict
serious injury during incidents of disorder, not only within licensed premises,
but further away if such vessels are permitted to be removed from the
premises.

It is expected that applicants will consider whether drinks should be provided
in toughened glass drinking vessels, and whether, after a given time at night,

A92



drinks usually served in bottles should be decanted before service. Such
conditions can be subject to appropriate exceptions, for example in the case
of champagne bottles or wine sold for consumption with a table meal.
The Authority considers that all premises serving alcohol for consumption on
the premises should be subject to conditions preventing open bottles being
taken away from the premises.

Participation in Radio Schemes

Kingston First’s Business Watch radio link scheme can be used to connect
licence holders, designated premises supervisors, or managers with the local
police and the Council’s CCTV control room


Conditions’ requiring the participation in the radio link scheme, or similar
arrangements, is considered to be necessary for all premises forming part of
the evening and nigh-time economy.

Lighting

In certain premises where levels of natural light may be reduced,
consideration should also be given to conditions that ensure that electrical
lighting in any area accessible to members of the public shall be maintained
fully operational when the premises is open.

It may also be necessary to use conditions to control the use of external
lighting operated in conjunction with licensable activities. For example,
floodlighting to gardens and smoking areas should only illuminate intended
areas, and flashing or particularly bright lights on or outside licensed
premises must not cause a nuisance to nearby properties.

However, the Authority recognises the benefits to the prevention of crime
and disorder of lighting in certain areas of the premises, and any conditions
must be mindful of ensuring such benefits are promoted.
Management Practices

The Authority considers good management practices are essential, and
would expect applicants and licence holders to demonstrate good practice,
where appropriate through conditions requiring written documentation in
respect of:
- Dispersal of customers
- Noise management
- Drugs policy
- Queue control and Searching
- Control of deliveries and the disposal of empty bottles and other
refuse late at night
2.

The control of noise emanating from licensed premises, or occurring as a result of
the provision of licensable activities, should be considered by premises located
close to areas of residential accommodation. In particular:


In certain premises consideration should be given to conditions to ensure
that noise or vibration does not emanate from the premises. This could be

A93





achieved through a requirement to keep doors and windows closed, for
example, or perhaps to require use of noise limiters on amplification
equipment.
It may also be necessary to restrict the use of gardens or other external
drinking areas after certain times to reduce the level of noise likely to be
generated. For example, conditions may restrict the use of such areas by
preventing the taking of drinks or food into the areas after a given time, but
thereby still providing facilities for smokers.
The disposal of refuse or recycling generated by the operation of a licensed
premises can, when undertaken at the wrong time of day, cause significant
noise particularly in respect of the moving and disposal of glass bottles. It
may therefore be necessary to condition that undertaking of such activities
will take place at times that will minimise disturbance.

3.

A number of licensed premises, particularly those predominantly providing late night
refreshment, have the potential to affect the quantity of litter on the streets around
the neighbourhood. It is expected that any premises wishing to provide late night
refreshment, as their predominant licensable activity will agree to conditions
requiring the cleaning of the pavement immediately in front of their premises. The
same conditions may also be necessary for businesses that generate significant
quantities of printed matter, by way of flyers or promotions.

4.

The Authority recognises the importance of Pubwatch and considers the attendance
at meetings of representatives from premises contributing to the evening and late
night economy as essential.

A94

ANNEX 8

SPECIAL POLICY ON CUMULATIVE IMPACT
1.0

Cumulative Impact is defined as the potential impact upon the promotion of the licensing
GROVEobjectives of a significant number of licensed premises concentrated in one area. The
Authority, after careful consideration, at a meeting of the Council on 31 October 2011,
determined that a Special Policy on Cumulative Impact be adopted after it was satisfied that
the concentration of licensed premises in the area identified on the map sown at figure 1,
was causing problems of crime and disorder and public nuisance, and was therefore having a
detrimental impact on the licensing objectives. This decision was based on evidence
submitted by the Metropolitan Police and local residents, and followed a period of public
consultation.

3.0

The Special Policy on Cumulative Impact took effect on 1 November 2011. The area of the
Borough to which the Special Policy relates was extended at a meeting of the Council on 17
December 2013, and is detailed at figure 1. A further review of the Special Policy on
Cumulative Impact has been commissioned in 2016.

4.0

The decision to continue with the operation of the Special Policy during the period of review
is based on evidence available to the Authority at the time that this Statement was
approved. This may be summarised as follows:

5.0



Analysis of crime statistics shows that, in 2015, of all violent offences recorded within the
Grove ward, 71% occurred between the hours of 21:00 and 05:00, the period considered
to be indicative of the night time economy. For 2014 this figure was 69.5%. For the
purposes of this analysis, 'violent crimes' are taken to be those that are categorised as
Common Assault, Assault with Injury and Woundings / Grievous Bodily Harm.



Offences of Criminal Damage record similarly high levels, with 45% of all offences being
recorded in the same time period in 2015 and 47% in 2014.



Data from the London Ambulance Service shows that in 2014-2015 45% of all alcohol
related ambulance call outs in Grove Ward occurred between the hours of 21:00 and
05:00. In the 2013-2014 period, 48% of all alcohol related ambulance call outs were
within the same time period.

The Authority considers that, based on the above evidence, the cumulative effect of
businesses operating in the night-time economy within the defined area is disproportionally
impacting upon levels of violent crime, criminal damage and alcohol related medical
emergencies. This evidence, along with other relevant evidence, will be further reviewed
during 2016.

A95

EFFECT OF THE SPECIAL POLICY
6.0

Applicants should be aware that the adoption of a Cumulative Impact Policy creates a policy
where the presumption is to refuse an application for new premises licences or club premises
certificates (for premises within the defined cumulative impact area). The policy will be strictly
applied and it will only be overridden in the most exceptional circumstances, and in particular
where approval would not materially lead to an increase in number and/or size of operating
premises or later operating premises in the Cumulative Impact Area. The same presumption
applies to applications made by existing licensed premises wishing to make changes to their
licence that may add to existing cumulative impact.

7.0

The Special Policy relates to all applications for new licences or variations that increase hours
or capacity or add licensable activities, except proposals which do not involve the sale of
alcohol or the sale of alcohol beyond 23:00pm or for proposals for regulated entertainment
not extending beyond 23:00pm. Off licences come within this policy as they can contribute to
problems of street drinking, proxy purchasing, dispersal issues, so-called ‘preloading’,
excessive drinking and related disorder.

8.0

The Authority is aware that the impact from premises can be different for premises with
different styles and characteristics. For example, while a large nightclub or high capacity
public house might add to problems of cumulative impact, a small restaurant, theatre or live
music venue (where alcohol is not the primary activity) may be considered exceptional
circumstances. The fact that a premises will be/is exceptionally well managed with a well
qualified applicant, or that there are no residential premises nearby, will not be considered
exceptional.

Responsible Authorities and Interested Parties
9.0

The Special Policy on Cumulative Impact does not relieve Responsible Authorities or
Interested Parties of the need to make representations in relation to applications in respect
of premises within the cumulative impact area.

10.0 The Authority must grant any application that does not attract any representations from
Interested Parties or Responsible Authorities. in terms consistent with the operating
schedule submitted.
11.0 If the Authority decides that an application should be refused, it will still need to show that
the grant of the application would undermine the promotion of one of the licensing
objectives and that conditions would be ineffective in preventing the problems involved

A96

CUMULATIVE IMPACT AREA
12.0 The Special Policy on Cumulative Impact applies to all premises located within, or partly
within, the area shown on the map at
figure 1.

B1

Appendix B

Licensing Sub Committee
13 April 2021
Best Kebab & Pizza – 29 Cambridge Road, Kingston upon Thames, KT1 3NQ.
Application for a Variation of a Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003
Report by the Licensing and Environmental Compliance Team Leader
PURPOSE
To determine the application, by Public Hearing, following receipt by the Licensing
Authority of relevant representations.
This sub-committee hearing is to consider the application, having regard to the
representation and relevant guidance, with the following options being available:
DECISION TO BE MADE:
1) Grant the application as it currently stands.
2) Grant the application subject to such conditions as the authority considers
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.
3) Exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which the
application relates.
4) Reject the application.
INTRODUCTION
1.

This application relating to Best Kebab & Pizza was made on 23 February 2021 by
Mr Stuart Gibson on behalf of Mr Muhammad Meer.

2.

The application seeks a variation to their existing premises licence to permit the
provision of late night refreshment from 23:00 hours to 05:00 hours daily.

3.

Relevant pages of the application form are attached at Annex 1. The current licence
is attached as Annex 2. The current licence is held by Mr Meer in an individual
capacity, whilst the application form has indicated that the applicant is a limited
company (Meer Kebab and Pizza Ltd), the agent has confirmed that the application
should be amended to show Mr Meer as an individual applicant.

4.

The current and proposed hours of operation are laid out in Annex 3.

5.

The application also seeks to add a number of conditions to the premises licence as
part of the variation application. These conditions are set out as Annex 4.

B2
CONSULTATION
6.

I confirm that the applicant has advertised the application by way of public notice
displayed at the premises, and in a local newspaper. The application has also been
made available on the Council’s website.

7.

I confirm that all Responsible Authorities received a copy of the application. The
Metropolitan Police as the Responsible Authority for the prevention of crime and
disorder and the Council’s Environmental Protection Officer (pollution Control) as
Responsible Authority for the prevention of public nuisance have made
representations to the application. These representations are attached at Annex 5.

8.

In accordance with the Council’s Licensing Policy, 445 addresses were consulted in
writing and informed that an application had been received. Four valid
representations were received from Other Parties. The representations make
reference to matters that relate to the prevention of public nuisance and prevention
of crime and disorder licensing objectives. Copies of the representations are
attached at Annex 6.

LOCATION
9.

A map showing the approximate location of the premises is attached as Annex 7,
with photographs attached as Annex 8.

LICENSING OBJECTIVES
10.

In considering this report the Sub-Committee is required to take into account the
Secretary of State’s Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003,
and our Licensing Policy (relevant paragraphs are produced at Annex 9) and the
licensing objectives of:





The prevention of crime and disorder.
Public safety.
The prevention of public nuisance.
The protection of children from harm

DETERMINATION
11.

In making their decision in respect of the application, the Sub-Committee must have
regard to Statutory Guidance and the Councils’ own Statement of Licensing Policy
as well as to the representations made and the evidence heard. However, the SubCommittee must disregard any representations that do not relate to the promotion of
the licensing objectives.

12.

The licensing sub-committee is asked to determine the application, having regard to
the representations received and any evidence heard at the hearing, in accordance
with the following options:


Grant the application as requested.



Grant the application subject to such conditions as the authority considers
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

B3


Exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which
the application relates.



Reject the application.

CONDITIONS
13.

Mandatory Conditions. If granted, the licence would be subject to the mandatory
conditions laid down in the licensing Act 2003 (this information will be available to the
Sub-Committee meeting).

14.

Conditions arising from applicants Operating Schedule. In applying for a licence,
the applicant is required to complete an operating schedule. This describes the steps
the applicant proposes to take in order to promote the licensing objectives if the
application is granted. These steps which are appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives will become conditions if the application is granted and are shown
in Annex 4. These conditions are in addition to those already on the existing licence.
However, the Sub-Committee must, having regard to the representations made,
modify these conditions, if it considers that such a step is appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives.

CONTENT OF ANNEXES TO THIS REPORT
Annex 1
Annex 2
Annex 3
Annex 4
Annex 5
Annex 6
Annex 7
Annex 8
Annex 9

Application Form
Current premises licence
Proposed hours of operation
Conditions arising from applicants Operating Schedule
Representations from Responsible Authorities
Representations from Other Parties
Location Plan
Photographs of Location
Excerpts from Secretary of State’s Guidance and Kingston’s Statement of
Licensing Policy

BACKGROUND papers are held by Rebecca Whelton, Environmental Protection Officer 020 8547 5079, rebecca.whelton@kingston.gov.uk

ANNEX 1

B4
Kingston upon Thames
Application to vary a premises licence
Licensing Act 2003

For help contact
licensing@kingston.gov.uk
Telephone: 020 8547 5002

* required information

Section 1 of 18
You can save the form at any time and resume it later. You do not need to be logged in when you resume.
System reference

Not Currently In Use

Your reference

sgl:303

This is the unique reference for this
application generated by the system.
You can put what you want here to help you
track applications if you make lots of them. It
is passed to the authority.
Put "no" if you are applying on your own
behalf or on behalf of a business you own or
work for.

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant?
Yes

No

Applicant Details
* First name

Muhammad

* Family name

Meer

* E-mail

s.gibson@sglicensing.co.uk
Include country code.

Main telephone number
Other telephone number

Indicate here if the applicant would prefer not to be contacted by telephone
Is the applicant:
Applying as a business or organisation, including as a sole trader
Applying as an individual

A sole trader is a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure.
Applying as an individual means the
applicant is applying so the applicant can be
employed, or for some other personal reason,
such as following a hobby.

Applicant Business
Is the applicant's business
registered in the UK with
Companies House?

Yes

No

Registration number

12380460

Business name

Meer Kebab and Pizza Ltd

VAT number
Legal status

Note: completing the Applicant Business
section is optional in this form.

If the applicant's business is registered, use
its registered name.
Put "none" if the applicant is not registered
for VAT.

Private Limited Company

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

B5
Continued from previous page...

Applicant's position in the
business

Director

Home country

United Kingdom

Registered Address

The country where the applicant's
headquarters are.
Address registered with Companies House.

Building number or name

29

Street

Cambridge Road

District
City or town

Kingston upon Thames

County or administrative area
Postcode

KT1 3NQ

Country

United Kingdom

Agent Details
* First name

Stewart

* Family name

Gibson

* E-mail

s.gibson@sglicensing.co.uk

Main telephone number

Include country code.

Other telephone number
Indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone
Are you:
An agent that is a business or organisation, including a sole trader
A private individual acting as an agent
Your Address
* Building number or name
* Street
District
* City or town
County or administrative area
* Postcode
* Country

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

A sole trader is a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure.
Address official correspondence should be
sent to.

B6
Continued from previous page...

Section 2 of 18
APPLICATION DETAILS
This application cannot be used to vary the licence so as to extend the period for which the licence has effect or to
vary substantially the premises to which it relates. If you wish to make that type of change to the premises licence,
you should make a new premises licence application under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003.
I/we, as named in section 1, being the premises licence holder, apply to vary a premises licence under section 34 of the
Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in section 2 below.
* Premises Licence Number

PL0181

Are you able to provide a postal address, OS map reference or description of the premises?
Address

OS map reference

Description

Postal Address Of Premises
Building number or name

Meer Kebab and Pizza

Street

29 Cambridge Road

District
City or town

Kingston upon Thames

County or administrative area
Postcode

KT1 3NQ

Country

United Kingdom

Premises Contact Details
Telephone number

02085461200

Non-domestic rateable
value of premises (£)

10,250

Section 3 of 18
VARIATION
Do you want the proposed
variation to have effect as
soon as possible?

Yes

No

Do you want the proposed variation to have effect in relation to the
introduction of the late night levy?
Yes

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

No

You do not have to pay a fee if the only
purpose of the variation for which you are
applying is to avoid becoming liable to the
late night levy.

B7
Continued from previous page...

If your proposed variation
would mean that 5,000 or
more people are expected to
attend the premises at any
one time, state the number
expected to attend
Describe Briefly The Nature Of The Proposed Variation
Describe the premises. For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other information which
could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to
provide a place for consumption of these off-supplies, you must include a description of where the place will be and its
proximity to the premises.
The premises trades as a takeaway food business, and home delivery and is seeking an extension of hours under Late Night
Refreshment.

Section 4 of 18
PROVISION OF PLAYS
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will the schedule to provide plays be subject to change if this application to
vary is successful?
Yes

No

Section 5 of 18
PROVISION OF FILMS
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will the schedule to provide films be subject to change if this application to
vary is successful?
Yes

No

Section 6 of 18
PROVISION OF INDOOR SPORTING EVENTS
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will the schedule to provide indoor sporting events be subject to change if
this application to vary is successful?
Yes

No

Section 7 of 18
PROVISION OF BOXING OR WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENTS
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will the schedule to provide boxing or wrestling entertainments be subject
to change if this application to vary is successful?
Yes

No

Section 8 of 18
PROVISION OF LIVE MUSIC
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

B8
See guidance on regulated entertainment

Continued from previous page...

Will the schedule to provide live music be subject to change if this
application to vary is successful?
Yes

No

Section 9 of 18
PROVISION OF RECORDED MUSIC
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will the schedule to provide recorded music be subject to change if this
application to vary is successful?
Yes

No

Section 10 of 18
PROVISION OF PERFORMANCES OF DANCE
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will the schedule to provide performances of dance be subject to change if
this application to vary is successful?
Yes

No

Section 11 of 18
PROVISION OF ANYTHING OF A SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO LIVE MUSIC, RECORDED MUSIC OR PERFORMANCES OF
DANCE
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will the schedule to provide anything similar to live music, recorded music or
performances of dance be subject to change if this application to vary is
successful?
Yes

No

Section 12 of 18
PROVISION OF LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT
Will the schedule to provide late night refreshment be subject to change if
this application to vary is successful?
Yes

No

Standard Days And Timings
MONDAY
Start 23:00

End 05:00

Start

End

Start 23:00

End 05:00

Start

End

TUESDAY

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Provide timings in 24 hour clock
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
to be used for the activity.

B9
Continued from previous page...

WEDNESDAY
Start 23:00

End 05:00

Start

End

Start 23:00

End 05:00

Start

End

Start 23:00

End 05:00

Start

End

Start 23:00

End 05:00

Start

End

Start 23:00

End 05:00

Start

End

THURSDAY

FRIDAY

SATURDAY

SUNDAY

Will the provision of late night refreshment take place indoors or outdoors or
both?
Indoors

Outdoors

Both

Where taking place in a building or other
structure select as appropriate. Indoors may
include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.
Late night takeaway of hot food and home delivery of hot food.

State any seasonal variations.
For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.
n/a

Non standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the provision of late night refreshment at different times from
those listed above, list below.
For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.
n/a
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

B10
Continued from previous page...

Section 13 of 18
SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL
Will the schedule to supply alcohol be subject to change if this application to
vary is successful?
Yes

No

Section 14 of 18
ADULT ENTERTAINMENT
Highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, or other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the
premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children.
Provide information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the premises which may
give rise to concern in respect of children, regardless of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for
example (but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups etc gambling machines etc.
n/a

Section 15 of 18
HOURS PREMISES ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC
Standard Days And Timings
MONDAY
Start 12:00

End 05:00

Start

End

Start 12:00

End 05:00

Start

End

Start 12:00

End 05:00

Start

End

Start 12:00

End 05:00

Start

End

Start 12:00

End 05:00

Start

End

TUESDAY

WEDNESDAY

THURSDAY

FRIDAY

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Provide timings in 24 hour clock
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
to be used for the activity.

B11
Continued from previous page...

SATURDAY
Start 12:00

End 05:00

Start

End

Start 12:00

End 05:00

Start

End

SUNDAY

State any seasonal variations.
For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.
n/a

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the members and guests at different times from
those listed above, list below.
For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.
n/a

Identify those conditions currently imposed on the licence which you believe could be removed as a consequence of the
proposed variation you are seeking.
There are no conditions to remove

I have enclosed the premises licence
I have enclosed the relevant part of the premises licence
Reasons why I have failed to enclose the premises licence or relevant part of premises licence.

Section 16 of 18
LICENSING OBJECTIVES
Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:
a) General – all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e)
List here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

B12
Continued from previous page...

The premises currently operates to a high standard, and will do so should this licence be granted . All staff will be fully
trained on induction in their responsibilities, and will be retrained every six months, with recorded training records kept for
inspection.
b) The prevention of crime and disorder
1. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an authorised officer of the Council or
the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours of the incident and will record the following:
a)all crimes reported to the venue
b)all ejections of patrons
c)any complaints received concerning crime and disorder
d)any incidents of disorder
e)all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons
f)any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning equipment
g)any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.
2. All staff members should be checked to ensure they have the right to work in the UK. These checks should be made
available upon requests to all responsible authorities. All associated ‘entitlement to work’ documents:
a)must be logged and kept on the premises for the duration of the employment; and
b)must be retained for a minimum of 12 months after employment has ceased.
4. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system. All entry and exit points must be covered
enabling frontal identification of every person entering in a light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst
the premises are open. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping.
Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer of the Council.
6. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system shall be in the premises at
all times when the premises is open. This staff member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies
of recent CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested and within a maximum of 24 hours of
the initial request.
7. Subject to Data Protection guidance and legislation, the management of the premises will ensure that key staff are fully
trained in the operation of the CCTV, and will be able to download selected footage onto a disk/USB Stick for the Police or
authorised officers of the Local Authority or UK Border Agency without difficulty, delay or charge.
8. Any CCTV breakdown or system failure will be notified to the Police and Local Authority immediately & remedied as soon
as practicable. Repair records / invoices shall be kept on site for at least 12 months and be readily available to be viewed by
all authorised persons upon request.
9. Notices shall be prominently displayed within the premises stating that CCTV is in operation.
10. Any person entering the premises who appears to be under the influence of alcohol or drugs shall in the interests of
other members of the public using the premises be requested to leave the premises.
11. The premises shall operate a zero tolerance policy to the supply and use of drugs
12. Anyone who appears to be drunk or intoxicated shall not be allowed entry to the premises and those who have gained
entry will be escorted from the building immediately.
13. All delivery of food must be made to a boa fide address, either commercial or residential.

c) Public safety
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

B13
Continued from previous page...

Staff will be trained to be alert to any potential danger to customers and react accordingly. If they are unable to quickly
defuse the situation without risk to customer or staff, then they are instructed to call the police. All relevant fire procedures
are in place for a premise of this size.
d) The prevention of public nuisance

Patrons attending the premises will be reminded of their responsibilities to leave the premises quietly.

e) The protection of children from harm

No person under the age of 18 shall be permitted on the premises unaccompanied by an adult after 23:00 hours.

Section 17 of 18
NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

25/03/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Re: Premises Licence Variation

B14

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Re: Premises Licence Variation
1 message
Stewart Gibson <s.gibson@sglicensing.co.uk>
To: RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

23 February 2021 at 16:08

Dear Beckie.

The applicant will indeed be Mr Meer.

Kind regards

Stewart

From: <rebecca.whelton@kingston.gov.uk> on behalf of RBK Licensing
<licensing@kingston.gov.uk>
Date: Tuesday, 23 February 2021 at 15:47
To: Stewart Gibson <s.gibson@sglicensing.co.uk>
Subject: Re: Premises Licence Variation

Dear Mr Gibson,

I am in receipt of your recent variation application in relation to 29 Cambridge Road, Kingston upon Thames. I note that
the applicant is listed as 'Meer Kebab and Pizza Limited'. Currently Mr Meer holds the licence in an individual capacity, he
will need to apply for a transfer if he wishes the licence to be held by the limited company. I am happy to accept the
variation as is if you are able to confirm that the applicant will be Mr Meer and a transfer can of course follow should you
wish.

Kind regards
Beckie

Licensing Team
Kingston & Sutton Shared Environment Service
Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames | Guildhall II | High Street | Kingston upon Thames | KT1 1EU
Tel: 020 8547 5080
Email: licensing@kingston.gov.uk
https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0yIJmn9S0F7WHnILImXXb_BltcREKOymZ3AFY_pTG8CZwmN/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&permt…

1/2

ANNEX 2

B15

LICENSING ACT 2003

PREMISES LICENCE
LICENCE NUMBER

PL0181

Part 1 – Premises Details
POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

BEST KEBAB & PIZZA
29 CAMBRIDGE ROAD
KINGSTON UPON THAMES
KT1 3NQ

TEL: 0208 546 1200

WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES

Not applicable
LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE

Provision of late night refreshment
THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

Provision of late night refreshment
Monday to Sunday 23:00 hours to Midnight
SEASONAL VARIATIONS / NON-STANDARD TIMINGS

None
WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND/OR OFF SUPPLIES:

Not applicable
THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES

Monday to Sunday Midday to Midnight
Part 2
NAME, (REGISTERED) ADDRESS, TELEPHONE NUMBER & EMAIL OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE

Mr Muhammad Bilal Meer

E-mail:
REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER: COMPANY NUMBER OR CHARITY NUMBER

Not applicable
NAME, ADDRESS & TELEPHONE NUMBER OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE
AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Not applicable

Licensing Team, 3rd Floor Guildhall 2, High Street, Kingston Upon Thames KT1 1EU
Printed on: 25/03/2021 12:28

Page 1 of 5

B16
LICENSING ACT 2003. PREMISES LICENCE

LICENCE NUMBER:

PL0181

PERSONAL LICENCE NUMBER & ISSUING AUTHORITY OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR

Not applicable
SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE LICENSING AUTHORITY

Rebecca Whelton
Environmental Protection Officer
Date First Granted: 14 October 2005
Issue Date: 10 February 2021

Printed on: 25/03/2021 12:28

Page 2 of 5

B17
LICENSING ACT 2003. PREMISES LICENCE

LICENCE NUMBER:

PL0181

ANNEX 1 – MANDATORY CONDITIONS

None
ANNEX 2 – CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE

None
ANNEX 3 – CONDITIONS ATTACHED AFTER A HEARING BY THE LICENSING AUTHORITY

None

Printed on: 25/03/2021 12:28

Page 3 of 5

B18
LICENSING ACT 2003. PREMISES LICENCE

LICENCE NUMBER:

PL0181

ANNEX 4 – PLANS

This is a scanned image of the plan and is not shown to scale

Printed on: 25/03/2021 12:28

Page 4 of 5

B19

LICENSING ACT 2003

PREMISES LICENCE SUMMARY
LICENCE NUMBER

Licensing Team
3rd Floor Guildhall 2
High Street
Kingston Upon Thames
KT1 1EU

PL0181

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

BEST KEBAB & PIZZA
29 CAMBRIDGE ROAD
KINGSTON UPON THAMES
KT1 3NQ

TEL: 0208 546 1200

WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES

Not applicable
LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE

Provision of late night refreshment
THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

Provision of late night refreshment
Monday to Sunday 23:00 hours to Midnight
SEASONAL VARIATIONS / NON-STANDARD TIMINGS

None
WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND/OR OFF SUPPLIES:

Not applicable
THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES

Monday to Sunday Midday to Midnight
NAME AND (REGISTERED) ADDRESS OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE

Mr Muhammad Bilal Meer

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER: COMPANY NUMBER OR CHARITY NUMBER

Not applicable
NAME OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Not applicable
STATE WHETHER ACCESS TO THE PREMISES BY CHILDREN IS RESTRICTED OR PROHIBITED

None
SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE LICENSING AUTHORITY

Rebecca Whelton
Environmental Protection Officer
Date First Granted: 14 October 2005
Issue Date: 10 February 2021

Licensing Team, 3rd Floor Guildhall 2, High Street, Kingston Upon Thames KT1 1EU
Printed on: 25/03/2021 12:28

Page 5 of 5

ANNEX 3
Proposed hours of operation
BEST KEBAB & PIZZA
Day
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday

Sunday

Proposed licence
Late night refreshment
Opening hours

23:00 - Midnight

12:00 - Midnight

23:00 – 05:00

12:00 – 05:00 the following morning

23:00 - Midnight

12:00 - Midnight

23:00 – 05:00

12:00 – 05:00 the following morning

23:00 - Midnight

12:00 - Midnight

23:00 – 05:00

12:00 – 05:00 the following morning

23:00 - Midnight

12:00 - Midnight

23:00 – 05:00

12:00 – 05:00 the following morning

23:00 - Midnight

12:00 - Midnight

23:00 – 05:00

12:00 – 05:00 the following morning

23:00 - Midnight

12:00 - Midnight

23:00 – 05:00

12:00 – 05:00 the following morning

23:00 - Midnight

12:00 - Midnight

23:00 – 05:00

12:00 – 05:00 the following morning

B20

Saturday

Current licence
Late night refreshment
Opening hours

B21
ANNEX 4
Conditions arising from applicants Operating Schedule
The prevention of crime & disorder
Incident log
1. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an
authorised officer of the Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours
of the incident and will record the following:
a)
all crimes reported to the venue
b)
all ejections of patrons
c)
any complaints received concerning crime and disorder
d)
any incidents of disorder
e)
all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons
f)
any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning equipment
g)
any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.
Right to work
2. All staff members should be checked to ensure they have the right to work in the
UK. These checks shall be made available upon request to any Responsible
Authority. All associated ‘entitlement to work’ documents:
a) must be logged and kept on the premises for the duration of the employment; and
b) must be retained for a minimum of 12 months after employment has ceased.
Closed circuit television system (CCTV)
3. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system. All entry
and exit points must be covered enabling frontal identification of every person
entering the premises. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the
premises are open. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days
with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available
immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer of the Council.
4. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the
CCTV system shall be in the premises at all times when the premises is open. This
staff member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of
recent CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested
and within a maximum of 24 hours of the initial request.
5. Subject to Data Protection guidance and legislation, the management of the
premises will ensure that key staff are fully trained in the operation of the CCTV,
and will be able to download selected footage onto a disk/USB Stick for the Police
or authorised officers of the Local Authority or UK Border Agency without difficulty,
delay or charge.
6. Any CCTV breakdown or system failure will be notified to the Police and Local
Authority immediately & remedied as soon as practicable. Repair records / invoices
shall be kept on site for at least 12 months and be readily available to be viewed by
all authorised persons upon request.
7. Notices shall be prominently displayed within the premises stating that CCTV is in
operation.

B22
Intoxication/drugs
8. Any person entering the premises who appears to be under the influence of alcohol
or drugs shall in the interests of other members of the public using the premises be
requested to leave the premises.
9. The premises shall operate a zero tolerance policy to the supply and use of drugs
10. Anyone who appears to be drunk or intoxicated shall not be allowed entry to the
premises and those who have gained entry will be escorted from the building
immediately.
Delivery
11. All delivery of food must be made to a bona fide address, either commercial or
residential.
The protection of children from harm
Access by children
12. No person under the age of 18 shall be permitted on the premises unaccompanied
by an adult after 23:00 hours.
The prevention of public nuisance
Noise
13. Patrons attending the premises will be reminded by staff of their responsibilities to
leave the premises quietly.

ANNEX 5

B23

RBK Licensing
Guildhall
High Street
Kingston Upon Thames
Surrey
KT1 1EU

PC 3108SW Lee Hopkins
Licensing Officer
Kingston Police Station
5-7 High Street
Kingston Upon Thames
Surrey KT1 1LB

Email: SouthWestSWMailbox.LicensingKingston@met.police.uk

22nd March 2021

Dear Sir / Madam,
Re: Meer Kebab and Pizza Ltd, 29 Cambridge Road, Kingston Upon Thames, KT1 3NQ
The Metropolitan Police write about the above application, which is to vary a premises licence
in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003.
The applicant wishes for the restaurant to sell hot food for consumption on and off the
premises, and is looking at the provision of late night refreshments between 23.00 hours and
05.00 hours every day and therefore having the facility to open 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.
Police hereby make objection to the application because it would undermine both the Crime
Prevention and Public Nuisance licensing objectives.
The venue currently benefits from a Late Night Refreshments license PL0181 which currently
has a provision to sell hot food and soft drinks every day until midnight.

Location
The premises is situated on a main arterial traffic route between Kingston and New Malden
and is located within a large residential area called the Cambridge Estate, and borders another
estate called Cambridge Gardens. The venue is on a busy bus route throughout the day and
also benefits with the N87 servicing the same route throughout the night with 4 busses an hour.
The Cambridge Estate is the largest estate within Kingston Borough with a large make-up of
social housing and council properties. It is also in close location to a very large purpose built
student living accommodation. All these factors bring many challenges for the local police and
other responsible authorities to maintain order within the footprint throughout the day. However
throughout the night the estate generally becomes quieter.
Although the premises is not within an area where a special policy has been adopted the most
recent revised Section 182 Guidance at 14.42 states “The absence of a special policy does not prevent any responsible authority or other person
making representations on an application for the grant or variation of a licence on the grounds
that the premises will give rise to a negative cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing
objectives”. As stated, the Metropolitan Police believe that this application will undermine the
Crime prevention and Public Nuisance objectives for the following reasons:-

B24
Rational
The prevention of Crime and Disorder
The Cambridge Estate and Cambridge Gardens currently has the highest volume of crime on
the borough, and extensive work is being done by the Metropolitan Police to try reduce
violent crimes, with increased patrols specific to hotspots, and intelligence led operations
focussing on gang activities in an effort to make the area safer for the public.
Current intelligence indicates that over the past 12 months the Cambridge Estate has seen
incidents of more serious violence, including the use of weapons. The same police source
suggests key nominals that associate themselves with the estate, are involved in drugs lines
and are currently active and possibly becoming more organised.
The restaurant will inevitably attract a high volume of people once the country is out of
lockdown who will have enjoyed a night out in Kingston, and consumed a lot of alcohol. The
venue as stated is in a densely populated area and can create a ‘hub’ or meeting point for
large groups as there are no other similar businesses that benefit with these extended hours.
This in turn could attract the aforementioned ‘gangs’ that prey on drunk individuals resulting
in surge of victims of serious crime such as robbery, violent assault and drug dealing.
The prevention of Anti-Social Behaviour
Another concern of the Metropolitan Police would be the increased anti-social behaviour. The
very nature of the venue being able to serve 24/7 would encourage many customers who
have consumed alcohol and enjoyed a night out to come to the establishment for food
instead of making their way home.
The selling of food late at night is also known to hinder dispersal, causing customers to loiter
in the area consuming their food prior to going home. Such delays is likely to increase public
nuisance. Not only does this make the customers vulnerable to crime as many would be drunk,
it also encourages unnecessary levels of noise disturbance and anti-social behaviour for
neighbouring residents late into the night. Local residents currently experience a high volume
of anti-social behaviour through-out the day, and if the license is granted, these issues would
be exacerbated to the early hours of the morning. This could be through elevated talking,
urination, littering or vomiting.
This only heightens, with the introduction of VIBE student living which is approximately a one
minute walk from the take away. VIBE have been contacted and they currently benefit from
300 rooms for rent for student housing. The impact of these students using the facilities late at
night could further increase tensions between the students and local residents.
Conclusion
As there are no other restaurants/take-away facilities that have similar hours, there is a
concern that if this application is granted, it would set a precedence for other businesses and
they would follow suit which will give a further rise to a negative cumulative impact in the area.
As the Metropolitan Police Service believe that there is a strong likelihood that both Violent
Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour would increase, and there are no conditions that the police
as a responsible authority could recommend to the applicant to alleviate these concerns, it is
respectfully requested that this application be refused.

Yours sincerely,

Pc Lee Hopkins 3108SW

B25

Licensing Officer
Kingston Police Station
M: 07436 246206
A: 5 – 7 High Street, Kingston, KT1 1LB
E: Lee.Hopkins@met.police.uk

B26

B27

22/03/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Meer Kebab and Pizza, 29 Cambridge Road, Kingston upon Thames (041933)

B28

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Meer Kebab and Pizza, 29 Cambridge Road, Kingston upon Thames (041933)
1 message
Richard Odell <richard.odell@kingston.gov.uk>
To: RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>
Cc: Lee Hopkins <Lee.Hopkins@met.police.uk>

19 March 2021 at 08:13

Licensing,
I refer to the above variation application.
The existing Premises Licence permits the provision of late night refreshment until midnight Monday to Sunday, both in
person and via deliveries. This application seeks to extend this until 5am, 7 days a week.
The premises is located at a busy junction where Hawks Road joins Cambridge Road. Cambridge Road, which leads
onto Kingston Road is a major arterial road for traffic heading between Kingston and New Malden and during peak times
it is busy with steady traffic flow. However during the late evening and into the night this traffic flow decreases with
notably lower flows at night, resulting in reduced background noise levels.
There is no parking outside the premises. I would assume that delivery vehicles (presumably mostly mopeds, but could
also include cars) would have little alternative but to park in the short section of Chatham Road (opposite the junction with
Hawks Road). This has a barrier at approximately 20m from the junction preventing motorised vehicles continuing further
down the road. All of Chatham Road, including this short section, is residential. It is noted that there is a gap in the
barrier allowing cycles to pass. It would not be unexpected to assume that late at night a moped rider may be very
tempted to use this as a short cut and ride down Chatham Road.
I am aware that a number of residents in Chatham Road have already raised representations regarding the existing
problems with noise and antisocial behaviour in Chatham Road and they feel that if this variation is permitted this
disturbance will increase. It is my consideration that delivery vehicles waiting from midnight to 5am, every night is likely to
add to the already existing problems that have been identified by the local residents and therefore conflicting with the
Council's public nuisance licensing objective. Noise is likely to arise from voices, mobile phone communications and
idling engines. This area is about 25m from the premises, around the corner and out of sight and there would be no
realistic expectation that the licensee would have any capability to monitor and exercise any control over the riders or
drivers collecting from the business. The area is overlooked by the nearest houses. There are also two service roads
that would be used by vehicles for turning which are located immediately by the first houses in Chatham Road.
From communications with the Licensing Police I am also aware that the area experiences a significant amount of antisocial behaviour. Given the location of the premises it is likely that if this variation is granted it will become a magnet for
people leaving the late licensed premises in Kingston Town Centre. This will have the potential to increase the existing
problems in the area, with customers waiting around outside. There would be a realistic expectation that a significant
number of these customers would have been consuming alcohol and thereby increasing the likelihood of
disturbance through raised voices and littering.
In the absence of any similar offering in the locality it is reasonable to expect a steady flow of customers, thereby
increasing the potential disturbance.
On this basis I have concerns that the variation to provide late night refreshment until 5am, 7 days a week will impact on
the Council's licensing objective for the prevention of public nuisance and I recommend that this is refused.
Best regards,
Richard Odell
Environmental Protection Officer
Regulatory Services
Kingston & Sutton Shared Environment Service
Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames
2nd Floor | Guildhall II | Kingston upon Thames | KT1 1EU
https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0yIJmn9S0F7WHnILImXXb_BltcREKOymZ3AFY_pTG8CZwmN/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&permt…

1/2

03/03/2021

ANNEX 6

B29

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

EH-LIC/043701 -Meer Kebab and Pizza, 29 Cambridge road.
1 message
>
To: licensing@kingston.gov.uk
Cc:

3 March 2021 at 14:21
>

03 March, 2021
To whom it may concern.
RE - EH-LIC/043701
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on this application.
We are opposed to the proposition that food and refreshments be provided between
23:00 to 05:00 on a daily basis at the above premises.
The corner of Chatham Road and Cambridge Road is already a known location for
petty crime, drug dealing and street drinking. To live in this street is to know this. This
proposal potentially draws more people into the vicinity in the evening and hours of
darkness. Chatham Road is frequently disturbed at night (especially worse in the
summer) with noisy pedestrians, with behaviour suggestive of drug or alcohol intake
(eg. loud, disinhibited). We fear the opportunity to buy hot food all night would only
add to this population, and add to the already challenging situation. We feel this
application must be considered with the prevention of further crime, and nuisance in
mind. I
have felt uncomfortable at times walking past some of the people
who gather in this area. I feel concern for our neighbours with young children. Chatham
Road is a residential street. Please consider the noise and nuisance and disturbance
and litter that this proposal would inevitably lead, by any logical thought.
Thank you,

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0wQXUF6HkFKgZjcoNiZKDYQ6HzpkFBXDyW_L5Gh1oct1asz/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&permth…

1/1

01/03/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Licensing Application:Meer Kebab & Pizza, 29 Cambridge Road, KT1 3NQ

B30

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Licensing Application:Meer Kebab & Pizza, 29 Cambridge Road, KT1 3NQ
1 message
28 February 2021 at 11:04
To: "licensing@kingston.gov.uk" <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

I wish to oppose this application to extend opening hours to 5am. The grounds of my objection is
that the increased activity, including motor vehicles travelling to the premises and parking whilst
buying or collecting for delivery, and the potential for people gathering in the vicinity to eat their
takeaway food, will create a public nuisance at a time when local residents might reasonably
expect to be able to sleep and enjoy night time quiet. It will also increase the likelihood of leftover
food being deposited in the neighbourhood creating litter and attracting foxes and rats.
My name and postal address is as follows:

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0wQXUF6HkFKgZjcoNiZKDYQ6HzpkFBXDyW_L5Gh1oct1asz/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&permth…

1/1

02/03/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Re: Meer Kebab & Pizza License Application

B31

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Re: Meer Kebab & Pizza License Application
1 message
2 March 2021 at 16:03
To: RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>
Hi Beckie,
I presumed from the “Guidance on making representations” and the fact that the licensing objectives are given on the
letter to residents that the premises is applying for alcohol sales.
Due to frequent anti social problems in the area (and end of Chatham Rd) I would like to object as I believe having a
premises open will mean people are loitering in the area.
Please let me know if you have any further questions,

Sent from my iPhone
On 2 Mar 2021, at 14:50, RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk> wrote:

Dear
Many thanks for your email. To clarify, the premises are not seeking to sell alcohol, but to provide the sale of
hot food and hot drinks until 05:00am daily, they are currently licensed to do so until Midnight.
If you could confirm whether your objection stands in light of this it would be much appreciated.
Kind regards
Beckie
Licensing Team
Kingston & Sutton Shared Environment Service
Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames | Guildhall II | High Street | Kingston upon Thames | KT1 1EU
Tel: 020 8547 5080
Email: licensing@kingston.gov.uk
www.kingston.gov.uk | www.sutton.gov.uk

On Tue, 2 Mar 2021 at 14:26,
Dear David,

<

wrote:

I am writing with regards to the application for variation of Premises license to Meer Kebab & Pizza
(trading as Best Kebab & Pizza) at 29 Cambridge Rd.
I live at
so am in very close proximity to the premises.
Due to the amount of anti social behaviour problems that we have in the local area, I object strongly to
the license application. With this in mind, the licensing objectives of public safety and the prevention of
crime and disorder are under question.
I can honestly see no reason why a small kebab shop should be open for use as an “off license” during
https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0wQXUF6HkFKgZjcoNiZKDYQ6HzpkFBXDyW_L5Gh1oct1asz/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&permth…

1/2

02/03/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Re: Meer Kebab & Pizza License Application

B32 and disorder and further anti social
the hours 23:00 - 05:00 daily. This will only encourage Crime
behaviour problems as mentioned which the borough of Kingston do not need.
Kind Regards,

Sent from my iPhone
Disclaimers
apply, for full details see : (https://www.kingston.gov.uk/email-disclaimer)

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0wQXUF6HkFKgZjcoNiZKDYQ6HzpkFBXDyW_L5Gh1oct1asz/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&permth…

2/2

03/03/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Meer Kebab House and Pizza KT1 3NQ

B33

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Meer Kebab House and Pizza KT1 3NQ
1 message
<
To: licensing@kingston.gov.uk

2 March 2021 at 19:33

Hello

I am writing about the extension of the opening hours to the Kebab House and I would like to object.
The reasons for rejection are as follows
Chatham Road ends up being a through traffic route this would increase traffic both from pedestrians, and takeaway food
motorbike driver's..
There is no where to park and people would end up parking in front of the fire gate (whether cars or bikes).
We already have problems at the end of the road due to the fact that this the first area where there is no CCTV and this
would further encourage people to congregate.
Kind regards

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0wQXUF6HkFKgZjcoNiZKDYQ6HzpkFBXDyW_L5Gh1oct1asz/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&permth…

1/1

B34
ANNEX 7

B35
ANNEX 8

B36

Google image capture – September 2020

B37
ANNEX 9
Secretary of States Guidance (April 2018)
1.2

The legislation provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory objectives
which must be addressed when licensing functions are undertaken.

1.3

The licensing objectives are:
 The prevention of crime and disorder;
 Public safety;
 The prevention of public nuisance; and
 The protection of children from harm.

1.4

Each objective is of equal importance. There are no other statutory licensing
objectives, so that the promotion of the four objectives is a paramount consideration
at all times.

1.5

However, the legislation also supports a number of other key aims and purposes.
These are vitally important and should be principal aims for everyone involved in
licensing work.
They include:
 protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and
noise nuisance

1.17



caused by irresponsible licensed premises;



giving the police and licensing authorities the powers they need to effectively
manage and police the night-time economy and take action against those
premises that are causing problems;



recognising the important role which pubs and other licensed premises play in our
local communities by minimising the regulatory burden on business, encouraging
innovation and supporting responsible premises;



providing a regulatory framework for alcohol which reflects the needs of local
communities and empowers local authorities to make and enforce decisions about
the most appropriate licensing strategies for their local area; and



encouraging greater community involvement in licensing decisions and giving
local residents the opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions that
may affect them.

Each application must be considered on its own merits and in accordance with the
Licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy; for example, if the application falls
within the scope of a cumulative impact policy. Conditions attached to licences and
certificates must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the
premises and events concerned. This is essential to avoid the imposition of
disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on premises where there is no
need for such conditions. Standardised conditions should be avoided and indeed may
be unlawful where they cannot be shown to be appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives in an individual case.

Crime and disorder

B38
2.1

Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of advice on crime
and disorder. They should also seek to involve the local Community Safety
Partnership (CSP).

2.2

In the exercise of their functions, licensing authorities should seek to co-operate with
the Security Industry Authority (“SIA”) as far as possible and consider adding
relevant conditions to licences where appropriate. The SIA also plays an important
role in preventing crime and disorder by ensuring that door supervisors are properly
licensed and, in partnership with police and other agencies, that security companies
are not being used as fronts for serious and organised criminal activity. This may
include making specific enquiries or visiting premises through intelligence led
operations in conjunction with the police, local authorities and other partner
agencies. Similarly, the provision of requirements for door supervision may be
appropriate to ensure that people who are drunk, drug dealers or people carrying
firearms do not enter the premises and ensuring that the police are kept informed.

2.3

Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder. For
example, where there is good reason to suppose that disorder may take place, the
presence of closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras both inside and immediately
outside the premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-social behaviour
and crime generally. Some licence holders may wish to have cameras on their
premises for the prevention of crime directed against the business itself, its staff, or
its customers. But any condition may require a broader approach, and it may be
appropriate to ensure that the precise location of cameras is set out on plans to
ensure that certain areas are properly covered and there is no subsequent dispute
over the terms of the condition.

2.4

The inclusion of radio links and ring-round phone systems should be considered an
appropriate condition for public houses, bars and nightclubs operating in city and
town centre leisure areas with a high density of licensed premises. These systems
allow managers of licensed premises to communicate instantly with the police and
facilitate a rapid response to any disorder which may be endangering the customers
and staff on the premises.

2.5

Conditions relating to the management competency of designated premises
supervisors should not normally be attached to premises licences. It will normally be
the responsibility of the premises licence holder as an employer, and not the licensing
authority, to ensure that the managers appointed at the premises are competent and
appropriately trained. The designated premises supervisor is the key person who will
usually be responsible for the day to day management of the premises by the
premises licence holder, including the prevention of disorder. A condition of this kind
may only be justified as appropriate in rare circumstances where it can be
demonstrated that, in the circumstances associated with particular premises, poor
management competency could give rise to issues of crime and disorder and public
safety.
The prevention of crime includes the prevention of immigration crime including the
prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. Licensing authorities should work
with Home Office Immigration Enforcement, as well as the police, in respect of these
matters. Licence conditions that are considered appropriate for the prevention of
illegal working in licensed premises might include requiring a premises licence holder
to undertake right to work checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or
requiring that a copy of any document checked as part of a right to work check are
retained at the licensed premises.

2.6

B39
Public safety
2.7

Licence holders have a responsibility to ensure the safety of those using their
premises, as a part of their duties under the 2003 Act. This concerns the safety of
people using the relevant premises rather than public health which is addressed in
other legislation. Physical safety includes the prevention of accidents and injuries and
other immediate harms that can result from alcohol consumption such as
unconsciousness or alcohol poisoning. Conditions relating to public safety may also
promote the crime and disorder objective as noted above. There will of course be
occasions when a public safety condition could incidentally benefit a person’s health
more generally, but it should not be the purpose of the condition as this would be
outside the licensing authority’s powers (be ultra vires) under the 2003 Act.
Conditions should not be imposed on a premises licence or club premises certificate
which relate to cleanliness or hygiene.

2.8

A number of matters should be considered in relation to public safety. These may
include:


Fire safety;



Ensuring appropriate access for emergency services such as ambulances;



Good communication with local authorities and emergency services, for example
communications networks with the police and signing up for local incident alerts



Ensuring the presence of trained first aiders on the premises and appropriate first aid
kits;



Ensuring the safety of people when leaving the premises (for example, through the
provision of information on late-night transportation);



Ensuring appropriate and frequent waste disposal, particularly of glass bottles;



Ensuring appropriate limits on the maximum capacity of the premises



Considering the use of CCTV in and around the premises

2.9

The measures that are appropriate to promote public safety will vary between
premises and the matters listed above may not apply in all cases. As set out in
Chapter 8 (8.38- 8.46), applicants should consider when making their application
which steps it is appropriate to take to promote the public safety objective and
demonstrate how they achieve that.

Public nuisance
2.15

The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through
representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is
appropriate to prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises licences
and club premises certificates. It is therefore important that in considering the
promotion of this licensing objective, licensing authorities and responsible
authorities focus on the effect of the licensable activities at the specific premises on
persons living and working (including those carrying on business) in the area around
the premises which may be disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will
mainly concern noise nuisance, light pollution, noxious smells and litter.

2.16

Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is
however not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law
meaning. It may include in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and

B40
working amenity and environment of other persons living and working in the area of
the licensed premises. Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse
effects of artificial light, dust, odour and insects or where its effect is prejudicial to
health.
2.17

Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to
control the levels of noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a
simple measure such as ensuring that doors and windows are kept closed after a
particular time, or persons are not permitted in garden areas of the premises after a
certain time. More sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains
or rubber speaker mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises may be
appropriate. However, conditions in relation to live or recorded music may not be
enforceable in circumstances where the entertainment activity itself is not licensable
(see chapter 16). Any conditions appropriate to promote the prevention of public
nuisance should be tailored to the type, nature and characteristics of the specific
premises and its licensable activities. Licensing authorities should avoid
inappropriate or disproportionate measures that could deter events that are valuable
to the community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for example, are expensive to
purchase and install and are likely to be a considerable burden for smaller venues.

2.18

As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate in
certain circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect those
living in the area of the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach
of licensing authorities and responsible authorities should be one of prevention and
when their powers are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware of the fact
that other legislation may not adequately cover concerns raised in relevant
representations and additional conditions may be appropriate.

2.19

Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate conditions
should normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For example, the most
sensitive period for people being disturbed by unreasonably loud music is at night
and into the early morning when residents in adjacent properties may be attempting
to go to sleep or are sleeping. This is why there is still a need for a licence for
performances of live music between 11 pm and 8 am. In certain circumstances,
conditions relating to noise emanating from the premises may also be appropriate
to address any disturbance anticipated as customers enter and leave.

2.20

Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright lighting
outside premises which is considered appropriate to prevent crime and disorder may
itself give rise to light pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, licensing authorities
and responsible authorities will need to balance these issues.

2.21

Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the
personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in
anti-social behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly
reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant
representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits
from the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if
they wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of outside,
and to respect the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night.

Protection of children from harm
2.22

The protection of children from harm includes the protection of children from moral,
psychological and physical harm. This includes not only protecting children from the

B41
harms associated directly with alcohol consumption but also wider harms such as
exposure to strong language and sexual expletives (for example, in the context of
exposure to certain films or adult entertainment). Licensing authorities must also
consider the need to protect children from sexual exploitation when undertaking
licensing functions.
2.23

The Government believes that it is completely unacceptable to sell alcohol to children.
Conditions relating to the access of children where alcohol is sold and which are
appropriate to protect them from harm should be carefully considered. Moreover,
conditions restricting the access of children to premises should be strongly
considered in circumstances where:
• adult entertainment is provided;
• a member or members of the current management have been convicted for serving
alcohol to minors or with a reputation for allowing underage drinking (other than in
the context of the exemption in the 2003 Act relating to 16 and 17 year olds
consuming beer, wine and cider when accompanied by an adult during a table meal);
• it is known that unaccompanied children have been allowed access;
• there is a known association with drug taking or dealing; or
• in some cases, the premises are used exclusively or primarily for the sale of alcohol
for consumption on the premises.

2.24

It is also possible that activities, such as adult entertainment, may take place at
certain times on premises but not at other times. For example, premises may operate
as a café bar during the day providing meals for families but also provide
entertainment with a sexual content after 8.00pm. It is not possible to give an
exhaustive list of what amounts to entertainment or services of an adult or sexual
nature. Applicants, responsible authorities and licensing authorities will need to
consider this point carefully. This would broadly include topless bar staff, striptease,
lap-, table- or pole-dancing, performances involving feigned violence or horrific
incidents, feigned or actual sexual acts or fetishism, or entertainment involving strong
and offensive language.

2.25

Applicants must be clear in their operating schedules about the activities and times
at which the events would take place to help determine when it is not appropriate for
children to enter the premises. Consideration should also be given to the proximity of
premises to schools and youth clubs so that applicants take appropriate steps to
ensure that advertising relating to their premises, or relating to events at their
premises, is not displayed at a time when children are likely to be near the premises.

2.26

Licensing authorities and responsible authorities should expect applicants, when
preparing an operating schedule or club operating schedule, to set out the steps to
be taken to protect children from harm when on the premises.

2.27

Conditions, where they are appropriate, should reflect the licensable activities taking
place on the premises. In addition to the mandatory condition regarding age
verification, other conditions relating to the protection of children from harm can
include:


restrictions on the hours when children may be present;



restrictions or exclusions on the presence of children under certain ages when
particular specified activities are taking place;



restrictions on the parts of the premises to which children may have access;

B42


age restrictions



restrictions or exclusions when certain activities are taking place;



requirements for an accompanying adult (including for example, a combination of
requirements which provide that children under a particular age must be
accompanied by an adult); and



full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable activities
are taking place.

Other persons
8.13

As well as responsible authorities, any other person can play a role in a number of
licensing processes under the 2003 Act. This includes any individual, body or
business entitled to make representations to licensing authorities in relation to
applications for the grant, variation, minor variation or review of premises licences
and club premises certificates, regardless of their geographic proximity to the
premises. In addition, these persons may themselves seek a review of a premises
licence. Any representations made by these persons must be ‘relevant’, in that the
representation relates to one or more of the licensing objectives. It must also not be
considered by the licensing authority to be frivolous or vexatious. In the case of
applications for reviews, there is an additional requirement that the grounds for the
review should not be considered by the licensing authority to be repetitious. Chapter
9 of this guidance (paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10) provides more detail on the definition of
relevant, frivolous, vexatious and repetitious representations.

Determining applications
9.9

It is recommended that, in borderline cases, the benefit of the doubt about any
aspect of a representation should be given to the person making that representation.
The subsequent hearing would then provide an opportunity for the person or body
making the representation to amplify and clarify it.

Hearings
9.37 As a matter of practice, licensing authorities should seek to focus the hearing on the
steps considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing objective or objectives
that have given rise to the specific representation and avoid straying into undisputed
areas. A responsible authority or other person may choose to rely on their written
representation. They may not add further representations to those disclosed to the
applicant prior to the hearing, but they may expand on their existing representation and
should be allowed sufficient time to do so, within reasonable and practicable limits.
9.38 In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives in the
overall interests of the local community, the licensing authority must give appropriate
weight to:


the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives;



the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the parties;



this Guidance;



its own statement of licensing policy.

B43
Hours of trading
10.13 The Government acknowledges that different licensing strategies may be appropriate
for the promotion of the licensing objectives in different areas. The 2003 Act gives the
licensing authority power to make decisions about the hours during which premises
can conduct licensable activities as part of the implementation of its licensing policy
statement. Licensing authorities are best placed to make decisions about appropriate
opening hours in their areas based on their local knowledge and in consultation with
responsible authorities. However, licensing authorities must always consider each
application and must not impose predetermined licensed opening hours, without
giving individual consideration to the merits of each application.
10.14 Where there are objections to an application to extend the hours during which
licensable activities are to be carried on and the licensing authority determines that
this would undermine the licensing objectives, it may reject the application or grant it
with appropriate conditions and/or different hours from those requested.

B44
STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY (version 4 July 2016)
8.

The Council is responsible for licensing a range of activities related to the sale and
supply of alcohol, the provision of regulated entertainment and late night
refreshments.

9.

In carrying out its functions under the Act, the Licensing Authority has a duty to
promote the following licensing objectives:





11.

As well as the statutory objectives, the Act and guidance support a number of other
key aims and purposes linked to the licensable activities that are considered to be
vitally important. They include:






12.

the prevention of crime and disorder
public safety
the prevention of public nuisance
the protection of children from harm

protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and
noise nuisance caused by irresponsible licensed premises
giving the police and licensing authorities the powers they need to effectively
manage and police the night-time economy
recognising the important role that pubs and other licensed premises play in our
communities by minimising the regulatory burden on business, encouraging
innovation and supporting responsible premises
providing a regulatory framework for alcohol that reflects the needs of local
communities and empowers them to make and enforce decisions about the most
responsible licensing strategies for their local area, and
encouraging greater community involvement in licensing decisions and giving
local residents the opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions that
may impact on them.

The Council must set out how it will promote the statutory objectives and support the
other key aims and purposes in a Statement of Policy and this must strike a
reasonable balance between different and sometimes competing aims, including
widening the choice and appeal of licensed premises and the development of culture
and protection of local residents.

COMMENTING ON APPLICATIONS (MAKING REPRESENTATIONS)
50.

The Authority recognises that the Act, and the Secretary of State’s Guidance,
specifies what matters it may take into consideration when determining whether any
representation made is relevant. This will include a consideration whether any
representation made is frivolous or vexatious (as defined by guidance).

51.

Though not specified by the relevant legislation or guidance, the Authority will only
consider representations received in writing, be this by letter, facsimile, e-mail or via
our online portal. Representations must be made within the relevant time period
specified in the Act for the application type being considered.

B45
PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER
90.

The Authority recognises that licensed premises, particularly late night venues, can
be a focus of crime and disorder problems. Therefore, whether the premises make,
or will make, a significant contribution to levels of crime and disorder, and whether
the Operating Schedule is based on an adequate risk assessment, undertaken by the
applicant, of the likelihood of crime and disorder occurring as a result of the grant of
the application is a key criterion.

91.

Applicants must clearly set out and explain in their Operating Schedule how the
operation of the premises will promote the prevention of crime and disorder. For pubs,
bars and premises with facilities for music and dancing (e.g. night clubs), a specific
assessment is needed as to how the risks of violence and crime in the premises and
within the vicinity will be managed.

92.

Where relevant representations are made, the Authority will tailor appropriate
conditions for premises licenses and club premises certificates. In doing so, the
Authority will treat the Police as a main source of advice on appropriate conditions for
particular premises.

93.

The Authority will carry out its licensing functions so as to promote the prevention of
crime and disorder, by ensuring that Licence Holders take measures to regulate the
behaviour of persons on the premises and patrons who are in the vicinity.

PUBLIC SAFETY
103.

Whether appropriate and satisfactory general and technical risk assessments,
management procedures and certificates have been made available to the relevant
responsible authority and the licensing authority that demonstrate that the public will
be safe within and in the vicinity of the premises are the key criteria relevant to this
objective.

104. The Authority must try to ensure the safety of people visiting and working in licensed
premises. It will therefore need to be satisfied that measures to promote public safety,
including risk assessments, setting safe capacities, adequate means of escape and,
where appropriate, CCTV are put in place and adequately maintained, if not provided
for by other regulatory regimes. As such, it is expected that applicants will
satisfactorily address these issues in their operating schedules and plans/drawings
submitted as part of the application process.
105. The Authority is not in a position to impose conditions on licences that relate to fire
safety legislation, for whom the enforcing authority is the London Fire and Emergency
Planning Authority [LFEPA]. However, given that applications must be submitted to
LFEPA, who may make representations on applications which are not considered to
be demonstrating the promotion of public safety, applicants are advised to make
contact with their local fire safety officer for advice regarding measures to ensure
adequate fire protection and means of escape prior to the submission of applications.
106. Whilst existing health and safety legislation will generally be sufficient to control risks
to the safety of the public in most premises, the Authority recognises that, in some
situations, statutory requirements may not be adequate, or be in place, to ensure
public safety. Where its right is invoked, the Authority may impose conditions

B46
requiring the licence holder to take steps over and above minimum legal requirements
as may be necessary to ensure safety.
107.

It should be noted that conditions relating to public safety should be those that are
appropriate in the particular circumstances of any individual premises or club
premises, and should not duplicate other requirements of existing Health and Safety
Legislation. Equally, the attachment of conditions to a premises licence or club
premises certificate does not in any way relieve employers of their statutory duty to
comply with the requirements of primary Health and Safety or Fire Safety legislation.

PUBLIC NUISANCE
114.

The Borough has a substantial residential population and the authority has a
responsibility to protect it from nuisance. In certain locations, the increased
concentration of entertainment uses and longer hours of operation have adversely
affected local residents. Commercial occupiers of premises also have a legitimate
expectation of an environment that is attractive and help sustain their business. The
role of the Council as a licensing authority is to maintain an appropriate balance
between the legitimate aspirations of the entertainment industry and the needs of
residents, businesses, workers, shoppers and visitors.

115. The potential for nuisance associated with the style, characteristics and activities of
the business to be carried on at the premises and the potential steps which could be
taken to reduce the risk of nuisance occurring are therefore the key criteria relevant
to this objective. This will particularly apply where there is residential accommodation
in the proximity of the premises.
116. The Authority will expect applicants to set out in their Operating Schedules the steps
taken, or proposed to be taken, to deal with the potential for public nuisance arising
from the operation of the premises or open air site under the licence.
117.

Applicants should identify and describe through a risk assessment how these risks
will be managed. Public nuisance could include low-level nuisance perhaps affecting
a small number of people living locally as well as major disturbance affecting the
whole community. It may include, in appropriate circumstances, a reduction of the
living and working amenity and environment of interested parties in the vicinity of
licensed premises.

PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM HARM
126.

The Authority supports the formation of family-friendly entertainment environments
and whether there are appropriate measures in place to protect children from harm
(including moral, psychological and physical harm) is the key criteria relevant to this
objective.

127.

Applicants are expected to demonstrate in their Operating Schedule that suitable and
sufficient measures have been identified and implemented to protect children from
harm, having regard to the style, characteristics and activities of the premises and
the activities provided. The measures expected to be considered may include staff
training on how to control the entry of young people under 18 and the vetting of staff
who will supervise them. Applicants will have to give particular regard to these
measures in applications for licences involving:


the sale of alcohol

B47


128.

children’s performances
attractions or performances likely to attract children

It is an offence to sell alcohol to children (under 18). There is a further specific offence
of persistently selling alcohol to children if sales are made on 2 or more occasions
within 3 months. Unaccompanied children under 16 should not be on “premises being
used exclusively or primarily for the supply of alcohol” e.g. pubs, bars and nightclubs.
In addition, unaccompanied children should not be on licensed premises after
midnight but before 5.00 a.m. Operating Schedules should consider whether there
will be circumstances when children under 16 should not be on the premises and
whether they were there for a specific purpose such as partaking of a meal or being
entertained by live performances and whether there were any specific aspects of
licensable or other activities taking place where children should be excluded e.g.
drinks promotions or particular types of performances or competitions.

NEIGHBOURHOOD SPECIFIC POLICIES ON THE PROMOTION OF THE LICENSING
OBJECTIVES
1. The Authority acknowledges that licensed premises located in some parts of the
Borough may have a greater impact upon the licensing objectives than similar
premises located in other areas. The following summarises the key characteristics
and challenges within specific neighbourhoods to help applicants. The Authority will
therefore expect applicants to take these factors into account when considering
what to include in their operating schedule and they must be prepared to justify why
appropriate recommended controls should not be applied in the event of
applications coming before a Sub-Committee.
2. Applicants are advised that Responsible Authorities will also expect the measures
relevant to the business operation to have been considered, and it is likely that
where deficiencies in the operating schedule are identified, representations are
likely to be made.
KINGSTON TOWN
3. The highest concentration of licensed premises is located within Kingston Town
Neighbourhood, and in particular within Grove Ward. This brings particular
concerns in relation to the impact that the number of premises has upon the
Licensing Objectives and as such, the Authority considers it necessary for tighter
controls (as set out in Operating Schedules – Additional Considerations) to be
applied to premises in this Neighbourhood.
OPERATING SCHEDULES – ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATIONS
1.

The following section sets out a range of additional considerations and controls that
the Authority may have regard to, depending on the location of the applicants
premises, in order to ensure that the licensing objectives are met. Some of the
controls described may have greater significance and be given greater emphasis by
the Licensing Sub-committee as a result.
Door Supervision

The use of door supervisors at licensed premises play a valuable role in
controlling queues, undertaking searches for the purpose of preventing drugs

B48
or offensive weapons being admitted and for ensuring any capacity limits are
not exceeded
Whilst all applicants should assess whether the provision of door staff is
necessary for their business, the authority expects that all Pubs, Bars,
Nightclubs and premises offering Late Night Refreshment to provide door
supervisors. The number of door supervisors should be identified through
risk assessment and with due consideration to the health and safety of door
supervisors, staff and the public.
Where its right is invoked, the Authority will generally impose a condition
requiring door staff on licences for this type of premises, unless it can be
demonstrated that such a condition is not appropriate for the promotion of
the licensing objectives.
Applicants and licence holders are expected to ensure that a policy on
searching customers is devised and implemented. Searches of persons
bags, or in some cases pat down or metal detector body searches may be
necessary to prevent and deter the bringing into licensed premises of drugs
and / or offensive weapons. Door supervisors are trained and equipped with
the necessary skills to undertake this task, and it may be necessary in
certain types of establishments for conditions to be included that require the
carrying out of searches.







CCTV systems
 CCTV cameras are a vital asset to both the licence holder and the regulatory
authorities. Footage obtained by CCTV has proven to be a vital source of
evidence in detecting crime at and immediately outside licensed premises.




Overt cameras also help deter criminal acts, such as theft of stock, and
whilst it is acknowledged that the installation of CCTV may incur
considerable expenditure, the Authority expects all applicants and licence
holders to consider providing CCTV systems
The Authority expects that CCTV systems will:
 cover all entrances, exits, internal and external areas of the premises.
 Ensure that images are stored for a minimum of 31 days
 Enable images to be delivered to Police or Council Officers in a
recognised format upon request
 be adequately maintained so as to operate and record at all times the
premises are open (for crime prevention purposes, it is recommended
that CCTV systems are operational 24 hours a day, using motion
sensors during non-opening hours).

Capacity Limits

In pubs, bars and nightclubs within Kingston Town Neighbourhood, the
Authority considers it necessary to impose limits on the number of persons
that may be present in order to ensure public safety, prevent overcrowding
and enable prompt exit by persons in the case of an emergency, for
example.

The Authority expects applicants to have considered the safe capacity for
their premises and to incorporate this figure into their operating schedule,

B49
together with details of their measures for ensuring that this capacity is not
exceeded.
Control of glass drinking vessels

Glass drinking vessels can be used as weapons and when broken can inflict
serious injury during incidents of disorder, not only within licensed premises,
but further away if such vessels are permitted to be removed from the
premises.

It is expected that applicants will consider whether drinks should be provided
in toughened glass drinking vessels, and whether, after a given time at night,
drinks usually served in bottles should be decanted before service. Such
conditions can be subject to appropriate exceptions, for example in the case
of champagne bottles or wine sold for consumption with a table meal.

The Authority considers that all premises serving alcohol for consumption on
the premises should be subject to conditions preventing open bottles being
taken away from the premises.
Participation in Radio Schemes

Kingston First’s Business Watch radio link scheme can be used to connect
licence holders, designated premises supervisors, or managers with the local
police and the Council’s CCTV control room


Conditions’ requiring the participation in the radio link scheme, or similar
arrangements, is considered to be necessary for all premises forming part of
the evening and nigh-time economy.

Lighting

In certain premises where levels of natural light may be reduced,
consideration should also be given to conditions that ensure that electrical
lighting in any area accessible to members of the public shall be maintained
fully operational when the premises is open.

It may also be necessary to use conditions to control the use of external
lighting operated in conjunction with licensable activities. For example,
floodlighting to gardens and smoking areas should only illuminate intended
areas, and flashing or particularly bright lights on or outside licensed
premises must not cause a nuisance to nearby properties.

However, the Authority recognises the benefits to the prevention of crime
and disorder of lighting in certain areas of the premises, and any conditions
must be mindful of ensuring such benefits are promoted.
Management Practices

The Authority considers good management practices are essential, and
would expect applicants and licence holders to demonstrate good practice,
where appropriate through conditions requiring written documentation in
respect of:
- Dispersal of customers
- Noise management
- Drugs policy

B50
- Queue control and Searching
- Control of deliveries and the disposal of empty bottles and other
refuse late at night
2.

The control of noise emanating from licensed premises, or occurring as a result of
the provision of licensable activities, should be considered by premises located
close to areas of residential accommodation. In particular:






In certain premises consideration should be given to conditions to ensure
that noise or vibration does not emanate from the premises. This could be
achieved through a requirement to keep doors and windows closed, for
example, or perhaps to require use of noise limiters on amplification
equipment.
It may also be necessary to restrict the use of gardens or other external
drinking areas after certain times to reduce the level of noise likely to be
generated. For example, conditions may restrict the use of such areas by
preventing the taking of drinks or food into the areas after a given time, but
thereby still providing facilities for smokers.
The disposal of refuse or recycling generated by the operation of a licensed
premises can, when undertaken at the wrong time of day, cause significant
noise particularly in respect of the moving and disposal of glass bottles. It
may therefore be necessary to condition that undertaking of such activities
will take place at times that will minimise disturbance.

3.

A number of licensed premises, particularly those predominantly providing late night
refreshment, have the potential to affect the quantity of litter on the streets around
the neighbourhood. It is expected that any premises wishing to provide late night
refreshment, as their predominant licensable activity will agree to conditions
requiring the cleaning of the pavement immediately in front of their premises. The
same conditions may also be necessary for businesses that generate significant
quantities of printed matter, by way of flyers or promotions.

4.

The Authority recognises the importance of Pubwatch and considers the attendance
at meetings of representatives from premises contributing to the evening and late
night economy as essential.

